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Notice of Annual General Meeting	

NOTICE is hereby given that the 15th Annual General 
Meeting of KRIDHAN INFRA LIMITED will be held on 
Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 
which will deemed to be held at the Corporate Office of the 
Company to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt: 

	 a.	 the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2021, together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon; and

	 b.	 the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021, together with the Report of Auditors thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2.	 To Increase Authorised Share Capital of the Company and 
consequential amendment in Memorandum of Association 
of the Company

In this regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment 
thereof) and the Rules framed thereunder, consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for 
increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company 
from existing Rs. 20,00,00,000/-(Rupees Twenty Crore Only) 
divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 
2/- each to Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crore Only) 
divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 2/- each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing 
Equity Shares of the Company as per the Memorandum and 
Articles of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 13 and 
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, consent of the members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded, for alteration of Clause V of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company by substituting 
in its place and stead the following:-

“V. The Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs. 
40,00,00,000/- divided into 20,00,00,000 equity shares of 
Rs. 2/- each with power to increase and/or reduce the capital 
of the Company as provided in the Articles of Association of 
the Company.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this 
connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give 
effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties 
or doubts that may arise in this regard.”

3. Appointment of Statutory Auditors to fill the casual vacancy

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution, with or without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 
(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, (including any statutory modification(s), 
clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for the 
time being in force) and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee & Board of Directors, M/s. Bagaria & Co. LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, having FRN.: 113447W, be and 
are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, 
to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. 
B R Kotecha & Co., Chartered Accountants, having FRN.: 
105283W. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. Bagaria & Co. LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, having FRN.: 113447W, be and 
are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company 

Kridhan Infra Limited
CIN: L27100MH2006PLC160602

Registered Office: 203, Joshi Chambers, Ahmedabad Street, Carnac Bunder, Masjid (East), Mumbai 400009.

Corporate Office: Unit No. C/815, on 8th Floor, 215-Atrium, Chakala, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400059.

Email: investor@kridhan.com, Website: www.kridhan.com, Tel: +91-22-240151523
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to hold the office from 1st September, 2021, until the 
conclusion of the ensuing 15th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company, at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, 
and out of pocket expenses, as may be mutually agreed with 
the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this 
connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give 
effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties 
or doubts that may arise in this regard.”

4. Appointment of Statutory Auditors

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution, with or without modification: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
139(8) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee and 
Board of Directors, consent of the members of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded to appoint M/s. Bagaria & 
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having FRN.: 113447W, 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to conduct the 
statutory audit for a period of five years commencing from 
the conclusion of this 15th Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
at such remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses, as may be 
mutually agreed with the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this 
connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give 
effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties 
or doubts that may arise in this regard.”

Members who would like to express their views or ask 
questions during the AGM may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request from their registered email 
address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio 
number, PAN, mobile number at investor@kridhan.com atleast 
48 hrs prior to the date of AGM i.e on or before 04:00 pm 
(IST) on Tuesday, 28th September, 2021. Those Members who 

have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed 
to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The 
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers 
depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
Kridhan Infra Limited

Anil Agrawal
Date: September 7, 2021	 Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Mumbai	                          (DIN: 00360114)
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Notes:

1.	 In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) vide its Circular 
Nos. 14/2020 and 17/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 
April 13, 2020 respectively, read with Circular Nos. 
20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and 02/2021 dated 
January 13, 2021 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA 
Circulars’), and Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(‘SEBI’) vide its Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/
CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, and SEBI/HO/
CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 
(collectively referred to as ‘SEBI Circulars’), have permitted 
the holding of AGM through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) 
or Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’), without the 
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. 
In accordance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars 
the 15thAGM of the Company is being held through VC/
OAVM on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 
(IST). The deemed venue for the 15thAGM will be the 
Corporate office of the Company i.e., Unit No. C/815, 
on 8th Floor, 215-Atrium, Chakala, Andheri-Kurla Road, 
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400059.

2.	 As per the provisions of clause 3.A.II. of the General 
Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated May 05, 2020, issued by 
the MCA, the matters of Special Business as appearing at 
item no. 2 of the accompanying Notice, are considered 
to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, form part of 
this Notice.

3.	 A Member entitled to attend and vote at the general 
meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy, who need not 
be a Member, to attend and vote on poll on behalf of 
himself/herself. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to 
the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, the requirement 
of physical attendance of Members has been dispensed 
with. Accordingly, in terms of the MCA Circulars and the 
SEBI Circular, the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
Members will not be available for this AGM and hence 
the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of AGM 
are not annexed to this notice. However, in pursuance of 
Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
representatives of the Members such as the President of 
India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 
attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM and cast their votes 
through e-voting.

4.	 The relevant statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 
Act, setting out the material facts relating to the Special 

Business as set out in the Notice, is annexed hereto and 
forms part of the notice of this AGM.

5.	 All documents referred to in the Notice as available for 
inspection will be available electronically for inspection 
without any fee by the members from the date of 
circulation of this Notice up to the date of the AGM i.e. 
30th September, 2021. Members seeking to inspect the 
documents can send an email to cs@kridhan.com.

6.	 The Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents are 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.1stFloor, Bharat Tin Works 
Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, 
Andheri East, Mumbai 400 059 Tel: 022 6263 8200.

7.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company will remain closed from Friday, September 
24, 2021 to Thursday, September, 30, 2021, both 
days inclusive, for taking record of the Members of the 
Company for the purpose of AGM and determining 
the names of the Members eligible for payment of final 
dividend on equity shares for the financial year 2020-21, 
if declared at the AGM.

8.	 Members who have not encashed/received the dividend 
warrants so far in respect of the below mentioned periods, 
are requested to make their claim to the R &TA well in 
advance before due dates. Members are requested to 
note that dividends not claimed within seven years from 
the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend 
Account, will be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Funds (IEPF). Pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 124(2) of the Act read with the Rules made 
thereunder, the Company has uploaded the details of 
unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company 
on its website: www.kridhan.com and also on the website 
of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

 Dividend	 Date of declaration	 Due date for
	 of Dividend	 transfer to IEPF

2013-14(Interim)	 28.11.2013	 08.01.2021

2013-14(Final)	 27.09.2014	 07.11.2021

2014-15(Final)	 29.09.2015	 09.11.2022

2015-16 (Final)	 30.09.2016	 10.11.2023

2016-17(Final)	 29.09.2017	 09.11.2024

2017-18(Final)	 28.09.2018	 08.11.2025

9.	 Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act read with 
the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016, the shares in respect of which dividend has 
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not been paid or claimed by the Members for seven 
consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to 
the demat account created by the IEPF Authority. During 
the current financial year 1st Interim Dividend for the 
financial year 2013-14 declared in the Board Meeting 
dated November 28, 2013 is due to be transferred in 
IEPF as seven years will be completed from the date of 
transfer of amount to Unpaid Dividend Account. The 
Members whose dividend/Shares, if transferred to the 
IEPF Authority, can claim the same from the Authority by 
following the procedure as detailed on the website of 
IEPF Authority http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/refund.html. 
Further, as per the IEPF Rules the Members/ Claimants 
can file only one consolidated claim in a financial year 
from a Company.

10.	 The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 26(4) 
and 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial 
Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors 
seeking appointment/re-appointment or approval for 
payment of remuneration at this AGM are annexed to the 
Notice and forms part of the Explanatory Statement.

11.	 Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, 
pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, 
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number 
(PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank 
details such as, name of the bank and branch details, 
bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code etc., to 
their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic 
form and to R&TA in case shares are held by them in 
physical form.

12.	 Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall 
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
under Section 103 of the Act.

13.	 The members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 
15 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following 
the procedure mentioned in the Notice. Members will 
be able to view the proceedings on e-voting website of 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’) at 
www.evotingindia.com. The facility of participation at 
the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available 
to at least 1,000 members on a first come first served 
basis as per the MCA Circulars. This will not include 

large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Board 
Committees, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the 
AGM without restriction on account of first come first 
served basis.

14.	 In line with the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 
May 5, 2020, issued by the MCA and the SEBI Circular, 
Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-
21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/Depositories. The Notice of AGM and Annual 
Report 2020-21 are available on the Company’s website 
viz. www.kridhan.com and may also be accessed from 
the relevant section of the websites of the Stock Exchanges 
i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, 
respectively. The AGM Notice is also on the website of 
CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) 
at www.evotingindia.com.

15.	 In terms of Section 72 of the Act read with the applicable 
Rules made under the Act, every holder of shares in the 
Company may at any time nominate, in the prescribed 
manner (Form No. SH-13), a person to whom his/her 
shares in the Company shall vest, in the event of his/
her death. Nomination Form can be obtained from the 
R & TA. The duly filled in Nomination Form shall be 
sent to R & TA at the above mentioned address by the 
Members holding shares in physical mode. Members 
holding shares in electronic form may contact their 
respective Depository Participants for availing this 
facility.

16.	 In case of joint holders, the Member whose name 
appears as the first holder in the order of names as per 
the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled 
to vote at the AGM.

17.	 Members who are holding Shares in identical order of 
names in more than one Folio, are requested to apply to 
the R & TA along with the relevant Share Certificates for 
consolidation of such Folios in one Folio.

18.	 Members desiring any information pertaining to the 
Financial Statement or any matter to be placed at 
the AGM, are requested to write to the Company at 
investor@kridhan.com on or before September 23, 2021 
through your registered email address so as to enable the 
Management to reply at the AGM.
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19.	 Electronic copies of all the documents referred to in the 
accompanying Notice of the AGM and the Explanatory 
Statement shall be made available for inspection 
electronically without any fee by the Members from 
the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of 
AGM, i.e. till September 30, 2021. Members seeking to 
inspect such documents can send an email to investor@
kridhan.com. During the 15th AGM also, Members may 
access the scanned copy of Register of Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Act; the Register of Contracts 
and Arrangements in which Directors are interested 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

20.	 As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, as amended, 
securities of Listed Companies can be transferred only 
in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, 
except in case of request received for transmission or 
transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate 
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease 
of portfolio management, Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting their 
holdings to dematerialized form.

21.	 The Company has made special arrangement with 
the RTA and NSDL for registration of e-mail addresses 
interms of the MCA Circulars for Members who wish to 
receive the Annual Report along with the AGM Notice 
electronically and to cast the vote electronically. In order 
to register the email id for receiving the Notice of 15th 
AGM and Annual Report through email please visit the 
link RTA website and provide the requisite information 
and attach requisite documents. The system will then 
confirm the e-mail address for the limited purpose of 
servicing the Notice of this AGM along with the Annual 
Report 2020-21.

22.	 Voting through Electronic Means:

	 a)	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies(Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), 
Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, 
MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circular, the Company is 
providing its Members the facility to exercise their right 
to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at 
the AGM by electronic means (by using the electronic 
voting system provided by CDSL) either by (a) remote 
e-voting prior to the AGM(as explained at ‘clause d’ 
herein below) or (b) remote e-voting during the AGM 

(as explained at ‘clause e’ below) Instructions for 
Members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM 
are explained at ‘clause f’ below.

	 b)	 Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act read 
with the Rules made there under (as amended), the 
voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion 
to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut-off date for the purpose 
of remote e-voting, being Thursday, September 23, 
2021. Members are eligible to cast vote only if they are 
holding shares on Thursday, September 23, 2021.

	 c)	 The remote e-voting period will commence at 09:00 
a.m. (IST) on Monday, September 27, 2021 and will 
end at 05:00 p.m. (IST) on Wednesday, September 29, 
2021. During this period, the Members of the Company 
holding shares in physical form or in dematerialized 
form as on cut-off date may cast their vote through 
remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be 
blocked/disabled for voting thereafter.

	 d)	 Instructions for remote e-voting prior to the AGM:

		  The voting period begins on Monday, September 27, 
2021 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Wednesday, 
September 29, 2021 at 05:00 p.m. (IST). Any person 
who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a 
Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice 
and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 
September 23, 2021, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at RTA email. However, 
if he/she is already registered with NSDL for remote 
e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID 
and password for casting the vote. The voting rights of 
Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the 
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the 
cut-off date.

PROCEDURE/ INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING ARE AS 
UNDER:

I.	 In case of members receiving e-mail:

a)	 Open e-mail

b)	 Open your web browser during the voting period and log 
on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

c)	 Now click on “Shareholders” tab

d)	 Now, select the “COMPANY NAME” from the drop 
down menu and click on “SUBMIT”

e)	 Now Enter your User ID
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	 i.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID

	 ii.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits 
Client ID

	 iii.	 Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter 
Folio Number registered with the Company.

		  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and 
Click on Login. If you are holding shares in demat form 
and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your 
existing password is to be used.

f)	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

	 For Members holding shares in Demat and Physical form

•	 Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by 
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders). 
Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to 
use the first two letters of their name and the last 8 
digits of the demat Account/folio number in the PAN 
Field.

•	 In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the 
applicable number of 0’s before the number after the 
first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. 
If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number 100 
then enter RA00000100 in the PAN Field.

	 Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat 
account or in the company records for the said demat 
account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

	 Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records for the said 
demat account or folio.

	 Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in 
order to login. If the details are not recorded with 
the depository or company, please enter the number 
of shares held by you as on the cut-off date in the 
Dividend Bank details field.

g)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

h)	 Members holding shares in physical form will then 
reach directly the Company selection screen. However, 
members holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required 
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be 
used also by the demat holders for voting for resolutions 

of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential.

i)	 For Members holding shares in physical form, the details 
can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained 
in this Notice.

j)	 Click on the EVSN i.e. 180823017 for “Kridhan Infra 
Limited” for the relevant <Company Name> on which you 
choose to vote.

k)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. 
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution 
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

l)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details.

m)	 After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, 
click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 
modify your vote.

n)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you 
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

o)	 You can also take out print of the voting done by 
you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 
Voting page.

p)	 If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed 
password, then enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password and enter 
the details as prompted by the system.

	 Non-Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.,) are required to log on to www.
evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.

	 They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration 
Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity to helpdesk 
www.evotingindia.com.

	 After receiving the login details they have to create a user 
who would be able to link the account(s) which they wish 
to vote on.

	 The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts 
they would be able to cast their vote.

Divi- 
dend 
Bank 
Details

PAN

DOB
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	 They should upload a scanned copy of the Board 
Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in 
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

	 In case you have any queries regarding e-voting, you 
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and 
e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com 
under help section or write an email to helpdesk www.
evotingindia.com.

II.	 In case of members receiving the physical copy:

	 Please follow all steps from Sr. No. b) to Sr. No. p) above 
to cast vote.

III.	 Other Instructions

a)	 In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, 
you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) 
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.co.in 
under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com.

b)	 In case of any queries you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (FAQ’s) for shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for shareholders available at the Downloads 
section of www.evoting.cdsl.com.

c)	 If you are already registered with CDSL for e-voting then 
you can use your existing user ID and password/PIN for 
casting your vote.

d)	 You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in 
the user profile details of the folio which may be used for 
sending future communication(s).

e)	 The e-voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion 
to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date (record date) Thursday, 
September 23, 2021.

23.	 Mr. Rinkesh Gala, Proprietor of Rinkesh Gala & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership 
No. ACS42486) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer 
to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
Manner.

24.	 The Scrutinizers shall immediately, after the conclusion 
of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during 
the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast 
through remote e-voting and make, within 48 hours 
from the conclusion of the meeting, a Consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favor 
or against of the resolutions transacted in the AGM 
and submit forthwith the same to the Chairman of the 

Company or a person authorised by him in writing who 
shall countersign the same.

25.	 The Chairman or the authorised person shall declare 
the results of the voting forthwith and the results 
declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall 
be placed on the website of the Company i.e. www.
kridhan.com and on the website of CDSL i.e. https://
www.evotingindia.com. The Company shall also 
simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited (BSE) 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), 
where the shares of the Company are listed.

26.	 Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the 
Resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed on 
the date of the 15th AGM i.e. Thursday, September 
30, 2021.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Kridhan Infra Limited

			 

Anil Agrawal
Chairman & Managing Director

(DIN: 00360114)

Date: September 7, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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The following statements sets out all material facts 
relating to the business mentioned under item No.2 
to 4 of the accompanying notice
Item No.2
The present Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 
20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crore Only) comprising of 
10,00,00,000 (Ten crore) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each. 
Considering the increased fund requirements of the Company, 
the Board at its Meeting held on 1st September, 2021, had 
accorded its approval for increasing the Authorised Share 
Capital from Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crore Only) 
to Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crore Only) by creation of 
20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) additional equity share of Rs.2/- 
each, subject to shareholders approval. 
It is therefore proposed to increase the Authorised Share Capital 
of the Company from Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty 
Crore Only) to Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crore Only) 
by creation of 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) additional equity 
share of Rs.2/- each ranking paripassu with the existing Equity 
Shares in all respects as per the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company. 
Consequently, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association 
would also require alteration so as to reflect the changed 
Authorised Share Capital. 
The proposal for increase in Authorised Share Capital and 
amendment of Memorandum of Association of the Company 
requires approval of members at a general meeting. 
A copy of the Memorandum of Association of the Company duly 
amended will be available for inspection in the manner provided 
in the note no. 5 to this Notice.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company or their respective relatives, are in any way concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution. 
The consent of the members is, therefore, being sought for passing 
the aforesaid resolution of the notice as an Ordinary Resolution. 
Item No. 3 and 4 
The members of the Company at the 15th Annual General Meeting 
held on 30th September, 2021 has approved the appointment 
of M/s. Bagaria & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having FRN.: 
113447W as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term 
of five years till the conclusion of 20th  Annual General Meeting. 
M/s. B R Kotecha & Co., Chartered Accountants has tendered 
their resignation as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, 
expressing their inability due to internal reasons, resulting in a 
casual vacancy in the office of the Auditors of the Company w.e.f. 
1st September, 2021, as per section 139(8) of the Companies, 
Act, 2013.
In accordance with aforesaid provisions of the Act, the casual 

vacancy caused by the resignation of the Statutory Auditors 
shall be filed by the Board within a period of thirty days and 
such appointment shall also be approved by the members of the 
Company within three months of the recommendation of the Board.
Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee and conformation received from M/s. Bagaria & 
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having FRN.: 113447W on 
their eligibility, the Board recommends to the members for the 
appointment of M/s. Bagaria & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company: 
a) to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. 
B R Kotecha & Co., Chartered Accountants, and to hold the 
office of the Statutory Auditors upto the conclusion of this Annual 
General Meeting: and 
b) for a period of five years, from the conclusion of the 15th 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 20th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2026. 
In regards to appointment of Statutory Auditors referred to in 
item no. 3 & 4 of the Notice, the brief profile of the Auditors is 
as under:
Bagaria & Company, was founded in 1985 as a Chartered 
accountancy firm having evolved into one of India’s premier 
niche professional firms. Over the past three decades have 
built lasting relations by delivering simple solutions to complex 
problems. Their service portfolio and a work culture that is 
both client-centric and knowledge driven. They attribute this to 
blend of experience and expertise across various sectors. They 
focus on delivering exceptional client service, backed by a 
partner driven approach to offer tailor-made solutions ensuring 
quality excellence & time efficiencies. Their dedicated teams 
are a mix of highly qualified people, young and experienced, 
enthusiastic and motivated, open to new ideas and with an 
ability to adapt to the changing needs of clients and profession. 
As an integrated team, they share skills, insight and resources, 
as well as a client centric approach that is based on a deep 
understanding of your business. 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company or their respective relatives, are in any way concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution. 
The consent of the members is, therefore, being sought for passing 
the aforesaid resolution of the notice as an Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
Kridhan Infra Limited

Anil Agrawal
Date: September 7, 2021	 Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Mumbai	 (DIN: 00360114)

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
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Directors’ Report

To,
The Members of
Kridhan Infra Limited

Your Directors present their 15th Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars                                                                                     Standalone Year ended    Consolidated Year ended
	 31.03.2021	 31.03.2020	 31.03.2021	 31.03.2020

Total Income	 2897	 2117	 2901	 2161

Depreciation	 78	 68	 98	 93

Profit/(loss) Before Tax after exceptional items	 -767	 -1211	 -809	 -971

Provision for Taxation	 -	 5		  6

Appropriation:				  

Profit/(loss)After Tax	 -774	 -1216	 -2227	 -2502

Attributable to:				  

Shareholders of the Company	 -774	 -1216	 -2227	 -2502

Non-controlling interests				  

Opening balance of retained earnings	 -15052	 -13836	 -16061	 -14791

Adjustment with other equity				  

Amount available for appropriation	 -15826	 -15052	 -18291	 -16061

Balance to profit/(loss) b/f				  

Transfer to:				  

Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax	 0	 0	 0	 0

Minority Interest				  

Balance carried to Balance Sheet	 -15826	 -15052	 -18291	 -16061

1.	 Financial Operations & State of Affairs of the 
Company 

	 During the year under review, total income of the 
Company increased for the year ended March 31, 
2021 to Rs. 2,897 lakhs from Rs. 2,117 lakhs achieved 
during the previous year.

	 Even though the Company’s income was increased, in 
view of the better margin and control on cost, loss before 
tax for the year was decreased to Rs. 767 lakhs as 
against Rs. 1,211 lakhs in the previous year registering 
decrease in losses. 

	 Your Directors assure to reduce and accelerate the 
growth momentum in coming years and strive for bright 
future for your Company.

2.	 Impact of COVID-19 

	 The year started amidst a strict nationwide lockdown 
in India with tough restrictions on economic activity 
and mobility. The Company, and indeed the entire real 
estate sector in India, saw a collapse in construction 
activity following the lockdown. At that time, there 
was an unprecedented uncertainty about the eventual 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.
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	 To deal with the situation, the Company formed a 
cross-functional Rapid Action Force which constantly 
monitored the situation and took swift and effective 
actions to mitigate the risks associated with the Covid-19 
crisis. This included meeting safety and health related 
challenges of its people, ensuring business continuity 
under lockdown and adapting the organisation to ramp-
up operations as restrictions were gradually lifted. 

	 During the year, it implemented several technology-
aided interventions to adapt to the new environment 
and ensure effective business operations including 
project launches and sales. At its project sites, 
technology enabled real-time monitoring of progress 
and adherence to the comprehensive safety and health 
protocols. Besides, the Company took several measures 
to support workers with essential supplies, medical care, 
facilities for safe worker movement to sites and provision 
for on-site accommodation, where possible, to mitigate 
risks associated with disruption of construction activity 
on account of Covid-19 pandemic. The Company 
continues to be fully aligned with government guidelines 
and best practices on safety, health and hygiene.

	 The Company is actively monitoring the impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic on its financial condition, liquidity, 
operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. It has 
used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, 
estimates and assumptions based on the current 
estimates. In assessing the recoverability of assets such as 
goodwill, inventories, financial and other assets, based 
on current indicators of future economic conditions, the 
Company expects to recover the carrying amounts of 
its assets. The extent to which Covid-19 impacts the 
operations will depend on future developments which 
remain uncertain.

	 Besides this, no material changes and commitments 
have occurred after the close of the year till the close 
of this Report, which affects the financial position of the 
Company.

3.	 Change in the nature of business, if any:

	 The Company is engaged in Engineering and 
Construction (E&C) business. 

4.	 Dividend

	 In view of the losses incurred, your Directors do not 
recommend any dividend for the year.

5.	 Transfer to Reserves 

	 During the financial year 2020-21 the Company has not 
transferred any amount to any reserve.

6.	 Details of the Companies which have become 
or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures 
or  Associate Companies during the year:

	 Due to slowdown in the economy and liquidity crunch 
in Singapore, the subsidiary of the Company namely 
Ready Made Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd. is under 
liquidation process and its step down subsidiary KH 
Foges Pte. Ltd. is under restructuring process. Hence, 
due to non-availability of the figures for the year ended 
31st March, 2021, the same have not been considered 
for the purpose of the consolidated financial results. 
Accordingly, the Consolidated figures for the year ended 
31st March, 2021 includes only the Indian subsidiary’s 
figures and are not comparable with the previous years’ 
figures. As a matter of prudence, the Company has, 
already impaired its investments and loans outstanding 
in the said subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. 
Ltd., in its standalone financials. In view of the same, 
there will be no material impact of the said liquidation 
on the financials of the Company. 

	 Consequently, the consolidated figures for the year 
ended March 31, 2021 consists of one subsidiary viz. 
Kridhan Infra Solutions Private Ltd and one Associate 
Company viz. Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd. 

	 As required pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of 
section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, Form AOC-1 forms part of this report, 
appended as Annexure A. 

	 Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the 
Act, the financial statements of the Company including 
consolidated financial statements along with relevant 
documents and separate audited financial statement in 
respect of subsidiary, are available on the website of the 
Company at www.kridhan.com

7.	 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

	 As on the date of this Report, your Company has 6 (Six) 
Directors consisting of 5 (Five) Independent Directors 
including 1 (One) Independent Woman Director and 1 
(one) Executive Director.
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	 The details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel 
who were appointed or have resigned during the year 
are as follows:

a.	 Mr Mahdav Deshpande (DIN: 01537794) was 
appointed as an Additional Independent Non-Executive 
Director w.e.f. August 14, 2020 for a period of five years.

b.	 Ms. Nikita Dahat, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer of the Company, had resigned from the Company 
w.e.f. August 25, 2020 for better future prospects.

c.	 Ms. Neha Shah, was appointed as the Company 
Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 
March 18, 2021.

	 The Company has received declarations from all the 
Independent Directors of the Company pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 149(7) of the Act, stating that they 
meet the criteria of independence as provided under the 
Act and the Listing Regulations and that they are not 
disqualified to become Directors under the Act; and in 
the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the Independent 
Directors fulfill the criteria of independence as provided 
under the Act read with the Listing Regulations and that 
they are independent of the Management. Further, at the 
time of the appointment of an Independent Director, the 
Company issues a formal letter of appointment outlining 
his role, function, duties and responsibilities. The format 
of the letter of appointment is available on our website 
at www.kridhan.com

	 Brief resume and other details of the Director proposed 
to be appointed and re-appointed, as stipulated under 
the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2, has 
been furnished separately in the Notice convening the 
AGM read with the Annexure thereto forming part of 
this Report. Details of the number of meetings of the 
Board of Directors and Committees and attendance 
at the meetings have been furnished in the Report on 
Corporate Governance.

8.	 Board Evaluation:

	 The Board of Directors is committed to continued 
improvement in its effectiveness. Accordingly, formal 
evaluation of Board’s, it’s Committee and Directors 
performance is carried out annually. This was designed 
to ensure, amongst other things, that the Board, its 
Committees and each Director continue to contribute 
effectively.

	 As per Section 134(3)(p) of the Act, a statement 
indicating the manner in which formal annual 
evaluation was made by the Board of their 
performance and that of its Committees and individual 
Directors, has to be furnished to the Members as part 
of the Board’s Report.

	 As per provisions of Section 178(2) of the Act, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall specify 
the manner for effective evaluation of performance 
of Board, its Committees and individual Directors to 
be carried out. Further, the Independent Directors, as 
part of their mandate under Schedule IV of the Act, 
need to make an evaluation of performance of the 
Board, it’s Committee and constituents of the Board 
apart from their self-evaluation. Under this process, 
a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking 
into consideration inputs received from the Directors, 
setting out parameters of evaluation; the questionnaire 
for evaluation are to be filled in, consolidated and 
discussed with the Chairman. The evaluation by the 
Independent Directors has been undertaken at their 
meeting held on February 14, 2021. The Board 
of Directors undertook evaluation of Independent 
Directors at their meeting held on February 14, 
2021and placed on its record that the Independent 
Directors have the requisite qualification, expertise and 
track record for performing their duties as envisaged 
under the Law, and they add value in the decision 
making process of the Board.

	 The criteria for evaluation of performance of Directors, 
the Board as a whole and the Board’s Committee, as 
specified by Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
was done. 

9.	 Board Familiarization Program:

	 At the time of appointment of Independent Director, 
through the induction process, he/she is familiarized 
with the Company, the Director’s roles, rights and 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry 
in which the Company operates, business model of the 
Company, etc. Detailed presentations are made before 
the Board Members at the Board Meetings covering 
various areas including business, strategy, financial 
performance and forecast, compliances/regulatory 
updates, audit reports, risk assessment and mitigation, 
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industry, roles, rights, responsibilities of Independent 
Directors, etc. The Familiarization Program aims to 
provide insights into the Company to enable the 
Independent Directors to understand its business in 
depth and contribute significantly to the Company. All 
Independent Directors attended the orientation and 
familiarization programs held during the financial year 
2020-21.

	 The details of training and familiarization programs are 
available on our website at www.kridhan.com

10.	 Policy on the Directors’ appointment and 
remuneration:

	 The Company’s Policy on the Directors’ appointment 
and remuneration including criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of 
Directors and other matters as provided under section 
178 of the Act is available at http://www.kridhan.
com/kr idhan_inves t_pol icy_code_of_conduct_
directors.php.

11.	 Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

	 The Board of Directors met 5 (Five) times during the 
Financial Year under review. The intervening gap 
between any two meetings was not more than 120 
days as prescribed under the Act. Details of the dates 
of Board Meetings and the attendance of the Directors 
at the Board Meetings are provided separately in the 
Report on Corporate Governance.

12.	 Committees of the Board:

	 As on March 31, 2021, the Board had three Committees 
namely, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee. 
The Composition of all the Committees is in line with 
the requirement of the Act and the Listing Regulations. 
During the year, all the recommendations made by the 
Committees were approved by the Board.

	 A detailed note on the composition of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee is provided 
separately in the Report on Corporate Governance.

13.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

	 In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules framed there under with respect 

to the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), your 
company is not governed by the provisions of Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
So, the Company is not required to conduct CSR 
activities.

14.	 Vigil Mechanism:

	 The Company has a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’/‘Vigil 
Mechanism’ in place. The objective of the Vigil 
Mechanism is to provide the employees, Directors, 
customers, contractors and other stakeholders of the 
Company an impartial and fair avenue to raise concerns 
and seek their redressal, in line with the Company’s 
commitment to the highest possible standards of ethical, 
moral and legal business conduct and fair dealings with 
all its stakeholders and constituents and its commitment 
to open communication channels. The Company is 
also committed to provide requisite safeguards for the 
protection of the persons who raise such concerns from 
reprisals or victimization, for whistle blowing in good 
faith. The Board of Directors affirms and confirms that 
no personnel have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. The Policy contains the provision for direct 
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 
appropriate or exceptional cases.

	 Vigil Mechanism cum Whistle Blower Policy is available 
on the Company’s website at:http://www.kridhan.com/
kridhan_invest_policy_whistle_blower.php

15.	 Audit Reports:

a)	 Statutory Audit Report:

	 The financial statements of the Company have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the 
Act. The Company has received an unmodified opinion 
in the Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2020-21.

b)	 Secretarial Audit Report:

	 Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s. Rinkesh Gala 
& Associates for the financial year 2020-21 in Form 
MR-3 forms part of this report and annexed hereto as 
Annexure B.

	 The Secretarial Auditor has qualified the Secretarial 
Audit Report dated September 1, 2021. The 



Annual Report 2020-21

16

observations of the Secretarial Auditors and the reply of 
the Management for the same are as under:

Auditors:

a) 	 Statutory Auditors:

	 M/s. B R Kotecha & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(registration number – 105283W) the present Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, holds the office till the 
31st August, 2021 and have given their Resignation 
expressing their inability due to internal reasons, 
resulting in a casual vacancy in the office of the Auditors 
of the Company w.e.f. 1st September, 2021, as per 
section 139(8) of the Companies, Act, 2013.

	 Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee 
and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 
and all other applicable provisions of the Act, read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
and all other applicable rules made under the Act, the 
Board of Directors has considered and recommended 
the proposed appointment of M/s. Bagaria & Co. 
LLP, Chartered Accountants, having FRN.: 113447W, 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in place 

of M/s. B R Kotecha & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(registration number – 105283W) for a term of five 
consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of 
the 15th  AGM till the conclusion of the 20th AGM, at 
a remuneration as may be recommended by the Audit 
Committee and fixed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in addition to out of pocket expenses as may 
be incurred by them during the course of the audit. 

	 Other relevant information has been furnished in the 
item No 3 and 4 of the Notice convening the AGM. 

b)	 Secretarial Auditors:

	 As required under provisions of the Section 204 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the report in respect of the 
Secretarial Audit carried out by M/s Rinkesh Gala & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, in Form MR 
3 for FY 2020-21 forms part to these report , marked as 
Annexure B. 

c) 	 Internal Auditors:

	 The Company has an in house Internal Audit (IA) 
function. To maintain its objectivity and independence, 
the IA function reports to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Board. The IA department evaluated 
deficacy and adequacy of the Internal Control Systems, 
its compliance with the operating systems and the 
policies of the Company and Accounting procedures at 
all locations of the Company.

	 Additionally, the Board had appointed M/s. U. B. 
Lakhani., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors 
of the Company in accordance with Section 138 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 to have financial control 
checks and ensure adequate transparency. The Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors periodically reviews 
the audit plans, internal audit reports and adequacy of 
internal controls in order to ensure that internal audit is 
conducted in a fair manner.

16.	 Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo 

	 The particulars as required under the provisions of 
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
in respect of conservation of energy and technology 
absorption have not been furnished considering the 

Due to Covid-19 pandemic, 
the candidates were finding 
it difficult to reach out to 
the Company for Interview 
and finalization process for 
Appointment. Hence the 
Company was unable to 
find the suitable Candidate 
for the Appointment of 
Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer. We had 
also finalized a candidate 
who was about to join in the 
month of February but could 
not join on time due to health 
issues. The same candidate 
joined the company as 
Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer w.e.f 
18th March, 2021.

Sr. 
No.

1.

Secretarial Auditors’ 
Observation

Reply from the 
Management

The Company was 
required to appoint 
Company Secretary 
and compliance officer 
upon resignation 
of CS Nikita Dahat 
on 25/08/2020. 
However, CFO-Mrs 
Rajeshree Mishra 
was appointed as 
Compliance Officer 
of the Company for 
the time being, till new 
CS was not appointed, 
Further the appointment 
of Neha Shah as 
Company Secretary 
and Compliance 
officer was done on 
18/03/2021.
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nature of activities undertaken by the Company during 
the year under review.

A.	 Conservation of Energy: 

a)	 the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NA 

b)	 the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy: NA 

c)	 the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments : NA 

B.	 Technology Absorption: 

a)	 the efforts made towards technology absorption: NA 

b)	 the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: NA

c)	 in case of imported technology (imported during the last 
three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year): NA 

	 	 the details of technology imported; 

	 	 the year of import; 

	 	 whether the technology has been fully absorbed; 

	 	 if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 
not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

	 	 the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development.

C.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

	 In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 5 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the information 
relating to foreign exchange earnings and outgo is 
provided under: 

(Amount in Rs. lakhs)

	Sr. No.	Particulars	 2020-21	 2019-20

	 1.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings	 NIL	 NIL

	 2.	 Foreign Exchange Outgo	 6.80	 247.94

17.	 Particulars of Employees

	 During the year under review, no employee was in receipt 
of remuneration exceeding the limits as prescribed under 
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

	 The information pursuant to Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 relating to median 
employee’s remuneration is made available at the 
corporate office of the Company during working hours 
for a period of twenty-one (21) days before the date of 
the meeting.

18.	 Extract of Annual Return 

	 As provided under Section 92(3) and Section 134 (3) 
(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of annual 
return in Form MGT-9 is available on the website of the 
Company at www.kridhan.com

19.	 Share Capital

	 The paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 
2021 stood at 18.96 Crore. During the year under 
review, the Company has not issued shares or 
convertible securities or shares with differential voting 
rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat 
equity or warrants. As on March 31, 2021, none of the 
Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible 
into Equity Shares of the Company.

20.	 Management Discussion and Analysis Report

	 In terms of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report, which gives a detailed account of state 
of affairs of the Company’s operations forms part of this 
Annual Report.

21.	 Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

	 In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, in relation to the audited financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, the 
Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures, 
wherever applicable;

b)	 such accounting policies have been selected and 
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applied consistently and the Directors made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the losses of the 
Company for the year ended on that date;

c)	 proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)	 the annual accounts of the Company have been 
prepared on a going concern basis;

e)	 internal financial controls have been laid down to 
be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

f)	 proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

22.	 Particulars of Contracts and Arrangements 
with Related Parties

	 Your Company has formulated a policy on Related 
Party Transactions including policy for determining 
material subsidiaries and on materiality of related party 
transactions which are available on the Company’s 
website and is accessible at the link: http://www.
kridhan.com/kridhan_invest_policy_related_party_
transactions.php-. 

	 All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by 
the Company during the financial year under review 
with related parties were in the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s length basis.

	 During the year under review, the Company has not 
entered into any contract/ arrangement/ transaction 
with related parties which could be considered material 
in accordance with the policy of the Company on 
materiality of related party transactions. Accordingly, 
particulars of contracts or arrangements with related 
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 along with the justification for entering into 
such contract or arrangement in Form AOC-2 does not 
form part of the report. However, the Directors draw 

attention of the members to the Standalone Financial 
Statement which sets out related party disclosures.

23.	 Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments 
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

	 Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees 
given and securities provided under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 form part of the Notes to the 
Standalone Financial Statements.

24.	 Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
the Financial Statement:

	 The Company has adopted the policies and procedures 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information.

	 The Company has in place adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements. The 
Company’s internal control systems, including internal 
financial controls, are commensurate with the nature of 
its business and the size and complexity of its operations 
and the same are adequate and operating effectively. 
These systems are periodically tested and no reportable 
material weakness in the design or operation was 
observed. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system 
including internal financial controls.

25.	 Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

	 Your Company has always believed in providing a safe 
and harassment-free workplace for every individual 
working in the Company. The Company has complied 
with the applicable provisions of the aforesaid Act, 
including constitution of the Internal Complaints 
Committee. The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual 
Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All 
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and 
trainees) are covered under this Policy. The Policy 
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is gender neutral. We are pleased to inform you that 
no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were 
received during the Financial Year 2020-21. The policy 
can be accessed on the website of the Company at the 
link http://www.kridhan.com/kridhan_invest_policy_
sexual_harassment.php

26.	 Secretarial Standards:

	 The Company has complied with all the applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India and notified by the 
Central Government.

27.	 Cost Records:

	 As per Section 148(1) of the Act read with the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the 
maintenance of cost records is not mandated for the 
products manufactured by the Company.

28.	 Other Disclosures/Reporting:

	 Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is 
required in respect of the following items as there were 
no events/instances/transactions occurred on these 
items during the year under review: 

a)	 Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the 
financial position of the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company 
to which the financial statements relate and the date of 
the report;

b)	 Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of 
the Act;

c)	 Voting rights which are not directly exercised by the 
employees in respect of shares for the subscription/
purchase of which loan was given by the Company (as 
there is no scheme pursuant to which such persons can 
beneficially hold shares as envisaged under section 
67(3)(c) of the Act);

d)	 Significant or material orders were passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future; and

e)	 Details in respect of frauds reported by the Auditors 
under section 143(12) other than those which are 
reportable to the Central Government, as there were no 
such frauds reported by the Auditors.

29.	 Acknowledgements:

	 Your Board wish to place on record their appreciation 
and acknowledge with gratitude the support and 
cooperation extended by the Government Authorities, 
Bankers, Customers, Employees and Members during 
the year under review and look forward to their 
continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Kridhan Infra Limited

Date: September 7, 2021 	 Anil Agrawal
Place: Mumbai	         Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00360114
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Annexure A
FORM AOC 1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129
read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement
of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

	 Sr. No.	 Particulars	
	 1.	 Name of the subsidiary	 Kridhan Infra Solutions Private Limited
	 2.	 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 	 2020-21
		  holding company’s reporting period	
	 3.	 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 	 INR Lacs
		  relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries	
	 4.	 Share Capital	 70
	 5.	 Reserves & Surplus	 -499
	 6.	 Total Assets	 1496
	 7.	 Total Liabilities	 1924
	 8.	 Investments	 0.05
	 9.	 Turnover	 23.42
	 10.	 Profit before taxation	 -41.83
	 11.	 Provision for taxation	
	 12.	 Profit after taxation	 -43.07
	 13.	 Proposed Dividend	 0.00
	 14.	 % of Shareholding	 100%
Part “B”: Associate and Joint Venture
	 Sr. No.	 Particulars	
	 1.	 Name of the associate	 Vijay Nirman Company Private Limited
	 2.	 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
		  holding company’s reporting period	 2020-21
	 3.	 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
		  relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries	 INR Lacs (Unaudited) 
	 4.	 Share Capital	 2055
	 5.	 Reserves & Surplus	 12964
	 6.	 Total Assets	 102000
	 7.	 Total Liabilities	 86980
	 8.	 Investments	 5
	 9.	 Turnover	 63795
	 10.	 Profit before taxation	 -3362
	 11.	 Provision for taxation	 2.07
	 12.	 Profit after taxation	 -2290
	 13.	 Proposed Dividend	 0.00
	 14.	 % of Shareholding	 41.47%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Kridhan Infra Limited

Date: September 7, 2021	 Anil Agrawal
Place: Mumbai 	 Chairman & Managing Director         
	 DIN: 00360114
Notes:
1.	 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – Not Applicable 
2.	 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year –NA
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Annexure B
FORM NO. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
Kridhan Infra Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Kridhan Infra Limited (hereinafter called the company).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
March 2021 has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Kridhan Infra 
Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, according to the provisions of: 

(i) 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) 	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) 	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) 	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):-  

	 (a)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

	 (b)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

	 (d)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

	 (e)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

	 (g)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and

vi) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

		  (i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
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	 (ii)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned above subject to the following:

	 The Company was required to appoint Company Secretary and compliance officer upon resignation of CS Nikita Dahat on 
25/08/2020. However, CFO-Mrs Rajeshree Mishra was appointed as Compliance Officer of the Company for the time 
being, till new CS was not appointed, Further the appointment of Neha Shah as Company Secretary and Compliance officer 
was done on 18/03/2021.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors, whichever is applicable. 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

All the decisions were carried out unanimously by the members of the Board and Committees and the same were duly recorded in 
the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors and Committees of the Company. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items and 
obtaining shorter consents wherever necessary before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company had no specific event /action having a major bearing on the Company’s 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

We further report that during the audit period the company has made the following decisions:

The subsidiary Company at Singapore viz. Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., is under liquidation process and the step down 
subsidiary of the Company at Singapore viz. K.H.Foges Pte. Ltd. is under Restructuring Process. Hence, due to non-availability of the 
figures for the year ended 31st March, 2021, the same have not been considered for the purpose of the consolidated financials. 
Accordingly, the Consolidated figures for the year ended 31st March, 2021 includes only the Indian subsidiary’s figures and are not 
comparable with the previous years’ figures and the Company has, already impaired its investments and loans outstanding in the said 
subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., in its standalone financials.

for Rinkesh Gala & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

Rinkesh Gala 

Proprietor

ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128 

Peer Review No: 847/2020

UDIN: A042486C000871160 

Place: Mumbai

Date: September 1, 2021
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ANNEXURE A

To, 
The Members, 
Kridhan Infra Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express as 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

for Rinkesh Gala & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

____________

Rinkesh Gala 

Proprietor

ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128 

Peer Review No: 847/2020

UDIN: A042486C000871160

Place: Mumbai

Date: September 1, 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Industry Structure and developments

This discussion provides an assessment by Management of the current financial position, results of operations for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2021. Information presented in this discussion supplements the financial statement, schedules and exhibits for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Global Economic Overview:

2020 is a year that many would remember for years, the covid-19 pandemic has not only presented with a global health 

crisis but has also severely impacted the global financial markets and the economies. Significant reductions in income, a rise in 

unemployment, rise in external debt and disruptions in economic activities has pushed a number of economies into a recession or 

have taken them to a brink of one

The first half of 2020 witnessed stringent lockdown norms being implemented in most of the countries across the globe. This was 

necessary to stem the rapid spread of the virus but it also meant putting a screeching halt to all the major economic activities. This 

resulted in a rapid contraction of the global economy. However, the things started to improve in the second half of 2020 with the 

gradual withdrawal of the lockdowns and the economic activities slowly picking up pace. Backed by the rebound in the oil prices 

and the commodity prices, the global demand also firmed up. According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global 

economy is likely to have contracted by nearly 3.3% in 2020, an outcome “far worse” than the 2009 global financial crisis.

Owing to the disruptions caused by the pandemic some of the major economies of the globe witnessed the highest ever fall in 

key economic activities such as manufacturing, resulting decline in the domestic demand. The pandemic has hit the advanced 

economies the hardest, and together the advanced economies were likely to have grown by -6% in 2020. 

Compared to the advanced economies, the emerging market and developing economies (EMDEs) showcased better resistance 

and were expected to have contracted by -1% during 2020. 

Partial easing of stringent lockdowns, during the latter half of 2020 and early 2021, instigated the resumption of business activities 

and goods trading witnessed slow improvement. 

One year into the COVID-19 pandemic, the accumulating human toll continues to raise concerns, even as growing vaccine 

coverage lifts sentiment. According to IMF, after witness the worst year since the World War II, the global economy is like to stage 

a commendable growth in 2021. The global economy is expected to grow by 5.5% in 2021, this is likely to happen on the back 

of steady spread of the Covid-19 vaccines which is to power a stronger global economic recovery in 2021. The vaccines should 

contain the spread of the virus and is likely to encourage a return to normal economic activity.

Domestic Economic Overview:

The ravages of the COVID-19 pandemic have taken a heavy human toll, not just in terms of afflicting lives and human well-being, 

but also by impacting incomes and livelihoods of the people of India. Amongst the G20 economies, the Indian economy witnessed 

the steepest contractions during 2020 as it contracted for two straight quarters in the first half of FY21. This also led the Indian 

economy to a technical recession in FY21 after a gap of more than 40 years. 

With nearly one year since the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, the nation still continues its fight against the novel virus 

and wade through the pandemic-induced challenges. However, with the phased unlocking of the economic activities, easing of 

movement restrictions, pent-up demand, and the revival of several infrastructure projects led to the slow recovery of the economy 

in the latter half of FY21. As anticipated, while the lockdown resulted in a 23.9% contraction in GDP in Q1, the recovery has been 

a V-shaped one as seen in the 7.5% decline in Q2 and then a steady recovery across all key economic indicators in the second 

half of FY21. India reported a growth of (8)% in FY21 and is expected to bounce back to grow at 8.3% in FY22. Aided by the 
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ramped-up vaccination process and additional fiscal support from the government, the Indian economy is likely to continue on 

its recovery path. The only concern or road block can prove to be the second wave of the pandemic outbreak hitting the nation.

As India continues to grapple with the pandemic stepping into the new year brings in new ray of hope for the economy and 

its people. With the rollout of Covid-19 vaccine, India may have turned toward the road to recovery but still in need of an 

encompassing plan to return on the growth track. Lower infection and fatality rates, and the possibility of widespread vaccine 

deployment are expected to improve consumer and business confidence. Further impetus to the economy is being provided by the 

pent-up demand for more elastic discretionary goods. This is likely to be driven by the top 10 income percentile of the population 

that could not spend because of mobility restrictions and may spur private investment that has been contracting for five consecutive 

quarters now	

Outlook

Although economic activity witnessed a strong rebound towards the end of 2020, COVID-19 is expected to have a lasting impact 

going forward, as many countries and sectors are going through an uneven recovery. While the current recovery momentum is 

well supported by ongoing vaccination and stimulus measures, renewed waves and new variants of the virus continue to pose 

concerns on the outlook. Against this backdrop, IMF is projecting the global economy to grow by 5.5% in 2021 as against the 

estimated contraction of -3.5% in 2020. In its 14th Five Year Plan, China has announced a 6% GDP target for 2021 with emphasis 

on reforms, innovation and high-quality development.

India had entered into 2021 with lower growth projections on the economic front led by global economic slowdown and the 

continuing coronavirus panademic with sharp rise in daily cases after second wave has led to stricter localised lockdown conditions 

which further impacted businesses as well as the economic situation. 

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) raised its FY22 growth forecast for India to 12.5% from 11.5% estimated earlier in January, 

even as a resurgent Covid spread in second phase has affected the country’s economic recovery. The IMF forecast pitches India 

as the fastest-growing major economy and the only one expected to record a double-digit recovery from pandemic-hit 2020.

Opportunities:

The Company has witnessed in the recent term an increasing push by the Government on infrastructure development across 

the nation with the objective of improving roadways, connectivity, and urbanization in this new decade. With consistently high 

awarding and construction activity, the company sees good potential with a strong pipeline ahead.

Threats

Resurgence of infections leading to fresh lockdowns, both localized as well as at regional / national levels resulting in disruption 

in economic activity. Land acquisition delays leading to delays in approvals and project execution

Labour intensive business leading to direct impact on project sites due to labour shortages resulting in Unforeseen disruptions in 

raw material/ labour unavailability.

Slower recovery in services, which is the backbone of Indian economy leads to Cash flow disruptions in event of economic 

slowdown.

Risk and concerns:

The Company has an effective risk management framework in place to primarily control business and operational risks. The 

major risk areas are periodically and systematically reviewed by the senior management and risk-management committee. 

Comprehensive policies and procedures help identify, mitigate and monitor risks at various levels. Further, the Company remains 

vigilant to the opportunities and will not hesitate to exploit them provided the Company can do so by eliminating any risk to our 

capital. By taking such proactive measures, the Company ensures that strategic business objectives are achieved seamlessly.
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Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Management monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with 

operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company and its subsidiaries. Based on the report of 

management, process owners undertake corrective action(s) in their respective area(s) and thereby strengthen the controls.

The Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by the management. Also, the Audit Committee has independent sessions with 

the external auditor and the Management to discuss the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting and internal financial controls respectively.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars	                                                                       Standalone Year ended       Consolidated Year ended

	 31.03.2021	 31.03.2020	 31.03.2021	 31.03.2020

Total Income	 2897	 2117	 2901	 2161

Depreciation	 78	 68	 98	 93

Profit/(loss) Before Tax after exceptional items	 -767	 -1211	 -809	 -971

Provision for Taxation	 -	 5		  6

Appropriation:				  

Profit/(loss)After Tax	 -774	 -1216	 -2227	 -2502

Attributable to:				  

Shareholders of the Company	 -774	 -1216	 -2227	 -2502

Non-controlling interests				  

Opening balance of retained earnings	 -15052	 -13836	 -16061	 -14791

Adjustment with other equity				  

Amount available for appropriation	 -15826	 -15052	 -18291	 -16061

Balance to profit/(loss) b/f				  

Transfer to:				  

Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax	 0	 0	 0	 0

Minority Interest				  

Balance carried to Balance Sheet	 -15826	 -15052	 -18291	 -16061

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people 
employed.

While health and well-being of employees remains as an area of importance, it attracted a lot of focus during the last year due to 

the COVID-19 pandemic. All steps were taken to provide proper healthcare to employees including their families in the times of 

crisis. The work and the workplace has seen a major shift and remote working was promoted as a new normal to break the chain 

of the pandemic. Financial security of the direct and indirectly engaged employees was ensured during the time of crisis. Several 

policies to address various unique concerns of the employees during the pandemic were also deployed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Kridhan Infra Limited is committed to good corporate 

governance and endeavors to implement the Code of 

Corporate Governance in its true spirit. The philosophy 

of the Company on corporate governance is to ensure 

transparency in all its operations, provide disclosures, and 

enhance stakeholder value without compromising in any way 

on compliance with the laws and regulations. The Company 

believes that good governance brings sustained corporate 

growth and long-term benefits for all its stakeholders.

Kridhan Infra Limited believes in implementing corporate 

governance practices in letter and in spirit and has adopted 

practices mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“SEBI LODR”) and has established procedures and systems to 

remain compliant with it. This report provides the Company’s 

compliance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI LODR as 

on 31st March, 2021.

1.	 Board of Directors

a.	 Composition and category of Directors and 
number of other Directorship or Committees in 
which a director is a member or chairperson:

	 The composition of the Board is in conformity with 

Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 

Company has an Executive Chairman and over 

one half of the total number of Directors comprises 

Independent Directors. The Management of the 

Company is headed by the Managing Director who 

operates under the supervision and control of the 

Board. The Board reviews and approves strategy 

and oversees the actions and results of management 

to ensure that the long-term objective of enhancing 

stakeholder’s value is met.

	 As on March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of 

the Company comprise of an optimal proportion of 

Executive and Non-Executive Directors.  The Board 

of Directors of your Company is comprised of 6 (Six) 

Directors out of which 1 (One) is a Promoter and 

Managing Director, and 1 (One) is a Independent 

Non-Executive Woman Director and 4 (Four) are 

Independent Non-Executive Directors.

	 There are no nominees or Institutional Directors in the 

Company.

	 No Director of the Company is either member in more 

than ten committees and/or Chairman of more than 

five committees across all Companies in which he is 

Director.

	 The Senior Management has made disclosures to the 

Board confirming that there is no material, financial 

and/or commercial transactions between them and 

the Company, which could have potential conflict of 

interest with the Company at large.
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Details relating to the composition of the Board of Directors, number of Directorships, Memberships and Chairmanships of the 
Directors of the Company in other Public Limited Companies as on March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Name of the Director(s) 	 Designation	 Category	 No. of	               Committee positions #
			   Directorship#	 Chairman/	 Membership
				    Chairperson

Mr. Anil Agrawal	 Chairman and  	 Promoter	 1	 0	 3
	 Managing Director

Mrs.  Priya Shah	 Independent	 Independent	 2	 0	 3
	 Non-executive Director

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Garg	 Independent	 Independent	 1	 0	 2
	 Non-executive Director

Mr. Abhijit Ranade	 Independent	 Independent	 1	 0	 0
	 Non-executive Director

Mr. Mahdav Deshpande 	 Independent	 Independent	 1	 0	 0
	 Non-executive Director

Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania 	 Independent	 Independent	 1	 4	 4
	 Non-executive Director

Mr Amar Fadia*	 Independent	 Independent	 1	 0	 0
	 Non-executive Director

(*Mr. Amar Fadia, resigned w.e.f 14th August, 2020)

#For the purpose of considering the number of other directorships and committee positions, all public limited companies, whether 
listed or not, have been included and all other companies including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies 
under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been excluded. Committee positions considered are only of Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, including that of the Company.

b.	 Attendance of each of the Directors at the meetings of the Board of Directors held during the financial 
year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) are as follows:

Name of Directors	 Number of Board Meetings Attended	 Attendances at the last AGM

Mr. Anil Agrawal	 5	 Yes

Mrs. Priya Shah	 5	 Yes

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Garg	 5	 Yes

Mr. Abhijit Ranade	 5	 Yes

Mr. Mahdav Deshpande	 4	 Yes

Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania 	 5	 Yes

Mr. Amar Fadia *                                                	 1	 Yes

(*Mr. Amar Fadia, resigned w.e.f 14th August, 2020)

c.	 Number of meetings of the Board of Directors held and dates on which held and date of the last AGM held:
	 Five (5) Board Meetings were held during the financial year under review on July 31, 2020, September 15, 2020, November 

11, 2020, December 2, 2020 and February 10, 2021.

	 The 14th Annual General Meeting was held on December 29, 2020.

d.	 Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:
	 No directors are related to each other.
	 Besides the transactions reported in the Notes to the Accounts for the year, the Company has not entered into any materially 

significant transactions with its Promoters, Directors or their relatives or with the Management, etc. that may have potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.



29

Kridhan Infra Limited

e.	 Number of Shares and Convertible Instruments 
held by Non-Executive Independent Directors:

Name of Director	 Shares Held	 Convertible 
		  instruments held

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Garg	 5,000	 Nil

Mrs. Priya Shah	 Nil	 Nil

Mr. Abhijit Ranade	 Nil	 Nil

Mr. Mahdav Deshpande	 Nil	 Nil

Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania	 Nil	 Nil

Mr Amar Fadia*	 Nil	 Nil

(*Mr. Amar Fadia, resigned w.e.f 14th August, 2020)

f.	 Weblink where details of familiarization 
programmes imparted to Independent 
Directors is disclosed:

	 http://www.kridhan.com/ControlArea/pdf_f i le/
FamiliarisationPolicy.pdf

g.	 Meeting of Independent Directors

	 The Company’s Independent Directors met on February 
14, 2021 without the presence of the Managing Director 
& CEO, Non-Independent Directors and the Management 
Team. The meeting was attended by all the Independent 
Directors and was conducted informally to enable the 
Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the 
Company’s affairs and put forth their combined views to 
the Board of Directors of the Company.

h.	 The table below summarizes the key skills, 
expertise and competence of the Board of 
Directors:

Name of Skills,
Expertise	 Details
and Competence

Business Development 	 Planning and developing strategies 
that enables sustainable growth.

Industry Experience 	 Experience in and knowledge of the 
industry in which the organization 
operates, technical competencies 
resulting in knowledge of how to 
anticipate technological trends, 
generate innovation, and extend or 
create new business models.

Sales and Marketing	 Building brand awareness, identifying 
the business SWOT and thereby 
enhance overall enterprise reputation.

Financial Management	 Management of financial function of 
the Company resulting in proficiency in 
complex financial management, capital 
allocation and financial reporting 
processes and experience in actively 
supervising principal accounting and 
auditing and performing similar functions.

Leadership	 Extending leadership experience in the 
organisations, strategic planning and 
risk management. Developing talent and 
driving change for long term growth.

Business Judgement	 Ability to identify key risks to the 
organisation in a wide range of 
areas including legal and regulatory 
compliance and monitor risk and 
compliance management frameworks 
and systems

Human Resource	 Developing strategies to manage 
Management 	 human resources and achieve change.

Confirmation about the Independent Directors:

All the independent Director have given declarations that they 
meet the criteria of independence as laid down the under Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) 
(b) of the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, the 
Independent Directors, fulfills the conditions of independence 
specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations.

i.	 Resignation of Independent Director(s)

	 During the year, Mr. Amar Fadia, Independent Directors 
of the Company had resigned w.e.f 14th August, 2020 
before the expiry of their respective tenure(s).

j.	 Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has laid down a ‘Code of Conduct’ for 
all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of 
the Company. The ‘Code of Conduct’ has also been posted onto 
the website of the Company and all the Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with 
the Code of Conduct for the financial year 2020–21.

Further, the Company/Board confirms that all of its Independent 
Directors have affirmed with the “Code of Conduct for 
Independent Directors”.

Declaration by the Chairman & Managing Director as per Clause 
D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations regarding adherence 
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to the Code of Conduct is forming part of the Report on Corporate Governance.

k.	 A Certificate as stipulated under regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations was placed before the Board of Directors and is 
also forming part of the report on Corporate Governance.

2.	 Audit Committee

a.	 The composition of the Audit Committee and attended by each Member during the year are as follows:

Name	 Designation	 Non-Executive/ Independent	                     Numbers of Meetings
			   Held	 Attended

Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania 	 Chairman	 Independent	 4	 4

Mrs. Priya Shah	 Member	 Independent	 4	 4

Mr. Anil Agrawal	 Member	 Executive	 4	 4

a.	 Meeting held during the year:

	 During the year under review, the Audit committee met 4 times i.e on i.e. on July 31, 2020, September 15, 2020, November 
11, 2020 and February 10, 2021.

	 The requisite quorum was present at all meeting. All the Members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have 
relevant accounting and financial management expertise as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of 
the Listing Regulations. Company Secretary of the Company acted as Secretary of the Audit Committee.

b.	 The terms of reference, role, powers, rights, authority and obligations of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment or amendments thereof).

a)	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

b)	 Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company. 

c)	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

d)	 Reviewing, with the management the annual financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, before submission to the 
board for approval, with particular reference to:

	 	 matters required to be included in Director’s Responsibility Statement included in Board’s report;

	 	 changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

	 	 major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;

	 	 significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

	 	 compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

	 	 disclosure of any related party transactions; and

	 	 qualifications in the draft audit report.

e)	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

f)	 Reviewing, with the management, statement of uses and application of funds raised through an issue, statement of funds 
utilized for other purposes and report of monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue 
and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

g)	 Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.
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h)	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.

i)	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

j)	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

k)	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

l)	 Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.

m)	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and 
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

n)	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon.

o)	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board.

p)	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion 
to ascertain any area of concern.

q)	 Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

r)	 Review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

s)	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit committee.

t)	 In fulfilling the above role, the Audit Committee has powers to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, to seek 
information from employees and to obtain outside legal and professional advice. The draft minutes of the audit committee 
meetings are circulated among members before the same is confirmed and placed before the Board.

u)	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, right issue, 
preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/ 
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of public or rights issue, and 
making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

v)	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments

3.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board in terms of 
the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 19 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consist of three Independent Directors.

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (Thrice) during the financial year end March 31, 2021 i.e. on August 
14, 2020, August 25, 2020 and March 18, 2020. Category of Directors as the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Members and their attendance at the aforesaid Meeting are detailed below:

	 Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary for all the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings.

Sr. No.	 Name of the Member	 Category	 Status 	 No. of Meetings 
				    attended

1.	 Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania 	 Independent Director	 Chairman	 3

2.	 Mr. Mahesh Kumar Garg	 Independent Director	 Member	 3

3.	 Mrs. Priya Shah	 Independent Director	 Member	 3
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Terms of Reference: 

a)	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 
to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

b)	 Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

c)	 Evaluate performance of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management and formulate the appropriate 
performance benchmarks;

d)	 Devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

e)	 Decide whether to extend or continue the terms of appointment of the Independent directors, on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

f)	 Any other matter as may be deemed necessary.

Performance Evaluation

	 During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as that of its Committees 
and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation 
process covering various aspects of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board and committees, experience 
and competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations, governance issues etc. Separate exercise was carried out 
to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Board Chairman who were evaluated on parameters such 
as attendance, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent judgment, safeguarding of minority shareholders 
interest etc.

4.	 Remuneration of Directors:

	 In compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed thereunder and pursuant to 
the provisions of Regulation 19(4) of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has a Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Functional Heads and other employees of the Company. The 
Policy provides for criteria and qualifications for appointment of Director, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs), remuneration to 
them, Board diversity etc. The said policy is available on the Company’s website http://www.kridhan.com/kridhan_invest_ 
policy_nomination_remuneration.php.

	 Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors:

	 No Payment is made to the Executive Directors during the FY 2020-2021. Following are the details of equity holding of the 
Non-Executive Independent Directors during the financial year 2020-2021.

	 Sr. No.	 Name of Non-Executive Director	 Sitting Fees (In Rs.)

	 1.		 Mahesh Kumar Garg	 50000

	 2.		 Abhijit Ranade	 200000

	 3.		 Priya Shah	 60000

	 4.		 Mahdav Deshpande	 100000

	 5.		 Shekhar Bhuwania	 100000

	 6.		 Amar Fadia*	 100000

(*Mr. Amar Fadia, resigned w.e.f 14th August, 2020)

The details of remuneration and perquisites paid to the Executive Directors during the period under the review are as under:

Sr. No.	 Name	 Designation	 Salary	 Commission 	 Perquisites	 Retirement Benefits

1.	 Mr. Anil Agrawal	 Managing Director	 Nil	 Nil	 Nil	 Nil

There were no Service Contracts, notice period, severance fees during the year and no stock options.
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5.	 Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Board in terms of the 
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 20 of the Listing 
Regulations.

	 The Stakeholder Relationship Committee consists of two Non-Executive Directors and an Independent Director and an 
Executive Director. 

	 Company Secretary of the Company acted as Secretary of the Audit Committee.

	 The Committee met 4 (four) times during the financial year ended March 31, 2021, i.e. on July 31, 2020, September 15, 2020, 
November 11, 2020 and February 10, 2021. Category of Directors as Members of Stakeholder Relationship Committee and 
their attendance at these Meetings are detailed below:

Sr. No.	 Name of the Member	 Category	 Status 	 No. of Meetings attended

1.	 Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania	 Independent Director	 Chairman	 4

2.	 Mr. Mahesh Kumar Garg	 Independent Director	 Member	 4

3.	 Mr. Anil Agrawal	 Managing Director 	 Member	 4

	 Nature of Complaints received and resolved during the financial year ended on March 31, 2021:

Complaints pending as on 	 Complaints Received during	 Complaints Redressed	 Complaints Pending
1st April, 2020	 the financial year ended 	 up to	 as on
	 31st March, 2021	 31st March, 2021	 31st March, 2021

             0	 0	 0	 0 

6.	 Risk Management Committee

	 The Board of Directors has voluntarily constituted a Risk Management Committee where majority of Members of the Committee 
consist of Independent Directors. Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee.

	 During the year no meeting was held.

	 Category of Directors as Members of Risk Management Committee are detailed below:

Sr. No.	 Name of the Member	 Category	 Status 

1.	 Mr. Shekhar Bhuwania	 Independent Director	 Chairman

2.	 Ms. Priya Shah 	 Independent Director	 Member

3.	 Ms. Anil Agrawal	 Managing Director	 Member

	 The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to all the Risk Management Committees.
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7.	 General Body Meetings:

a.	 Annual General Meeting:

	 Details of last three Annual General Meetings are given below:

Financial 
Year

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

Date

29th December,
2020

30th September, 
2019

28th September, 
2018

Time

04:00 p.m.

04:00 p.m.

03:00 p.m.

Venue

Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 
Audio Visual Means deemed to be 
conducted at the Corporate Office of 
the Company

Country Club, A/723, Opp. Kia 
Park, Veera Desai Road, Prathmesh 
Complex, Andheri (West), Mumbai 
400 053.

Country Club, A/723, Opp. Kia 
Park, Veera Desai Road, Prathmesh 
Complex, Andheri (West), Mumbai 
400 053.

Special Resolution(s)

1) To appoint Mr. Mahdav Deshpande (DIN: 
01537794) as a Non-Executive, Independent 
Director.

1) Appointment of Statutory Auditors.
2) To appoint Ms. Priya Dilipbhai Shah (DIN: 
07594589), as an Independent Director
3) Re-appointment Mr. Abhijit Vidyanand 
Ranade as an Independent Director.
4) Re-appointment of Mr. Mahesh Kumar 
Garg as an Independent Director.

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Anil Agarwal as 
Managing Director of the Company 
2. To provide loans guarantees and security 
u/s 185 of the Companies Act 2013 to Vijay 
Nirman Company Pvt. Ltd.  An associate of the 
Company
3. Increase in threshold  of  Loans and 
guarantee, providing securities  and making 
of the Investment in securities u/s 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

b.	 Special Resolutions passed  through Postal Ballot- NIL

c.	 Details of the Postal Ballot held during FY  2020-21 are given below: NIL

d.	 Person who conducted Postal Ballot:  NA

e.	 Whether any Special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: No 

f.	 Procedure for Postal Ballot:

	 The Company will comply with the requirement s relating to the postal  ballot process as and when such matter arises requiring  
approval  of the Members by such process as per section 110 and other applicable  provisions of the Companies Act 2013, 
read with the Companies (Management and Administrator Rules, 2014 read with the Listing Regulations, as amended from 
time to time.

8.	 Means of Communication

(a)	 Quarterly results:

	 Quarterly/ Half yearly/Annual results are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company 
are listed pursuant to the Listing Regulations requirements and are published in the newspapers. The financial results are 
displayed on the Company’s website i.e. www.kridhan.com
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(b)	 Newspapers wherein results normally published:

	 The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company during the financial year 2020-21 are generally published in 
Business Standard, English edition and Mumbai Lakshdeep, Marathi edition.www.kridhan.com.

(c)	 Any Website, where displayed:

	 The Company’s website www.kridhan.comcontains a separate dedicated section “Investors” where information for 
shareholders is available. The Quarterly/Half yearly/ Annual Financial Results and annual reports are posted on the said 
website.

(d)	 Whether Website also displays official news releases: 

	 The Company has maintained a functional website www.kridhan.com containing basic information about the Company e.g. 
details of its business, Directors and also other details as per the requirement of Listing Regulation and the Companies Act, 
2013 like financial information, shareholding pattern, codes, compliance with corporate governance, contact information of 
the designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances, etc. 

(e)	 Annual Report:

	 Annual Reports are sent to each shareholder at their address registered or on their e-mail address registered with the 
Company/R&TA/Depositories. Corporate Governance Certificate, as required under Schedule V (E) of the Listing Regulations 
for the financial year 2020-21 obtained from Practising Company Secretary and Management Discussion & Analysis Report 
are attached to this report.

(f)	 Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts:

	 No presentation to any institutional investors or analysts has been made during the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

(8)	 General Shareholder Information

(a)	 Annual General Meeting (AGM):

        	 Day, Date and time	 : Thursday, September 30, 2021; 4.00 p.m.

	 Venue	 : Through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio visual Means	

(b)	 Financial year: April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021.

(c)	 Dividend Payment Date: NA

(d)	 Name and address of stock exchanges at which the Company’s securities are listed and confirmation 
about payment of annual listing fees to each of stock exchanges: The Company’s equity shares are listed on the 
BSE Ltd. (BSE)- Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001, and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE) - Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051. The Company 
has paid the applicable annual listing fees to BSE and NSE.

(e)	 Stock code:

BSE Scrip Code	 533482 

NSE Trading Symbol	 KRIDHANINF

ISIN Number for NSDL & CDSL	 INE524L01026
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(f)	 Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in last Financial Year

	 The performance of the equity shares of the Company on BSE and NSE depicting the liquidity of the Company’s equity shares 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, on the said exchanges, is as follows:

MONTH	                       BSE	                                      NSE

	 High	 Low	 High	 Low

April, 2020	 2.35	 1.14	 1.95	 1.10

May, 2020	 2.83	 1.99	 2.65	 1.90

June, 2020	 5.80	 2.61	 5.80	 2.55

July, 2020	 5.00	 2.81	 5.05	 2.90

August, 2020	 4.15	 2.99	 4.05	 2.90

September, 2020	 3.46	 2.69	 3.60	 2.70

October, 2020	 3.24	 2.40	 3.30	 2.50

November, 2020	 2.74	 2.20	 2.75	 2.25

December, 2020	 4.65	 2.59	 4.70	 2.55

January, 2021	 4.75	 3.80	 4.70	 3.75

February, 2021	 4.28	 3.30	 4.30	 3.25

March, 2021	 4.71	 3.54	 4.65	 3.55

(g)	 Performance in comparison to broad-based indices:

(h)	 In case the securities are suspended from trading, reason thereof:

	 The Securities of the Company have not been suspended from trading.

(i)	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (R & TA):

	 Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.

	 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai 400 059.

	 Email : investor@bigshareonline.comTel: 022 6263 8200
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(j)	 Share Transfer System:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company, in order to expedite the process, has delegated the power of approving transfer, 
transmission, etc. of the securities of the Company to the R & TA. Securities lodged for transfer, transmission, etc. are normally 
processed within the stipulated time as specified under the Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Company has duly obtained certificates on half yearly basis from the Practicing Company Secretary, certifying 
due compliance with the formalities of share transfer as required under clause 47(c) of erstwhile Listing Agreement and 
Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations and submitted a copy of the certificate to the Stock Exchanges where the securities 
of the Company are listed.

(k)	 Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2021:

Category(shares)	 No. of Shareholders	 Percentage % Of shareholding 

1-5000	 27117	 14.845

5001-10000	 563	 4.4938

10001-20000	 237	 3.5870

20001-30000	 96	 2.5412

30001-40000	 33	 1.2370

40001-50000	 34	 1.6384

50001-100000	 36	 2.5277

100001 & above	 47	 69.129

Total	 28163	 100.00

(l)	 Shareholding pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2021:

	Category	 Category of Shareholders	 Number of	 Total Number	 Total shareholding as
	 code		  shareholders	 of shares	 a percentage of total
					     number of shares

	 A	 Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 			 

         1	 Indian	 4	 44691160	 47.15

        2	 Foreign	 0	 0	 0

		  Total Shareholding of Promoter and	 4	 44691160	 47.15
		  Promoter Group

	 B	 Public shareholding			 

	 1	 Institutions	 5	 7762343	 8.19

	 2	 Non-institutions	 27681	 42325702 	 44.66

		  Total Public Shareholding	 27686	 50088045	 52.85

	 C	 Shares held by Custodians and against	 0	 0	 0
		  which Depository Receipts have been issued

		  GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C)	 27690	 94779205	 100.00
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(m)	 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

	 The shares of the Company are available for dematerialisation (holding of shares in electronic form) on both the depositories 
viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

	 The shares of your Company are to be compulsorily traded in the dematerialised form. As on March 31, 2021,  9,47,14,180 
Equity Shares comprising of 99.93% of total Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of the Company, have been 
dematerialised by the Investors and bulk of transfers take place in the Demat segment.

(n)	 Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or warrants or any convertible 
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on Equity: 

	 Date of Issue	 Category of holder	 Type of Security	 No. of Security	 Face Value

	 --	 --	 --	 --	 --

(o)	 Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

	 Not applicable.

(p)	 Location of Plant: Village – Vanwathe, Khopoli, Pen Road, Taluka Khalapur, District Raigad 410 203.

(q)	 Address for correspondence:

Registered Office	 For queries on Annual Report 	 For share transfer/ dematerialisation of shares/
	 or investors’ assistance	 other queries relating to the securities
	 (Secretarial Department)	 (Registrar & Share Transfer Agents)

Regd. Office: 203, Joshi Chambers,	 Ms. Neha Shah	 Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.
Ahmedabad Street, Carnac Bunder,	 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer	1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,
Masjid (East), Mumbai 400009.	 Add: Unit No. C/815, on 8th Floor,	 Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,
	 215-Atrium, Chakala, Andheri-Kurla Road,	 Andheri East, Mumbai 400 059.
	 Andheri (East), Mumbai 400059	 Email: investor@bigshareonline.com
	 Email ID: cs@kridhan.com	 Tel: 022 6263 8200

	 The aforesaid e-mail id and other relevant details have been displayed on the website of the Company i.e. http://www.
kridhan.com

(9)	 Other Disclosures

(a)	 Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the 
interests of the Company at large: 

	 During the financial year under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions with the Promoters, 
Directors, etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The related party transactions are 
entered into based on business exigencies and are intended to further the Company’s interests.

(b)	 Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 
three years:

	 There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital markets during the last three 
years and hence no penalties, strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or Securities and Exchange 
Board of India or any other statutory authority.

(c)	 Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel 
have been denied access to the Audit Committee:
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	 The Company has a Vigil Mechanism cum Whistle Blower Policy in place, details of which have been furnished in the Board 
of Directors’ Report. The Board of Directors affirms and confirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. 

(d)	 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non- mandatory requirements:

	 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. The status of 
compliance with the non-mandatory requirements of this clause has been detailed in point no.12 below.

(e)	 Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: http://www.kridhan.com/
kridhan_invest_policy_determining_material_sub.php.

(f)	 Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions: www.kridhan.com

(g)	 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: NA

(h)	 Total fees for all services paid by the Company, to the Statutory Auditor and all entities in the network 
firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part:

Type of service	 FY 2020-21	 FY 2019-20

Audit Fee	 175000	 175000

Tax Audit Fee	   50000	   50000

Other services	   25000	   25000

Total	 250000	 250000

(i)	 Details of the credit rating:

Facility	 Amount (Rs.crs)	 Rating	 Remarks

Fund Based	 18.00	 B	 Brickwork Ratings

(j)	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace(Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013:

	 a.	 number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil

	 b.	 number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil

	 c.	 number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil

(k)	 Risk Management:

	 The Company has adopted Risk Management Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 and all other applicable 
provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The Company has procedures in place to inform the Board Members about the 
risk assessment and minimization procedures. These procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that the Management 
controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with 
the nature and size of its business. These are tested and reported by the Statutory as well as Internal Auditors. Significant audit 
observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee.

(l)	 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

	 A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted Equity Share 
Capital with National Securities Depository Limited [NSDL], Central Depository Services (India) Limited [CDSL] and Equity 
Shares held in physical form and the total issued and listed Equity Share capital. The Audit Report confirms that the total 
issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized 
shares held with NSDL and CDSL. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE and NSE.
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(10)	 Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10) 

above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed

	 The Company has complied with the requirements of corporate governance report of sub paras (2) to (10) of the Schedule V 
of the Listing Regulations. 

(11)	 Adoption of the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of the Schedule II of the Listing 

Regulations

(a)	 The Board

	 The Company has an Executive Chairman and hence, the requirement pertaining to reimbursement of expenses to a Non - 
Executive Chairman does not arise.

(b)	 Shareholder Rights

	 The Company’s quarterly and half-yearly results are furnished to the Stock Exchange, also published in the newspapers and 
also displayed on the web site of the Company i.e. www.kridhan.com and therefore results were not separately sent to the 
Members. 

(c)	 Modified opinion(s) in audit report 

	 The Company is in the regime of financial statements with modified audit opinion. Comments given in Annexure to the 
Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory.

(d)	 Separate posts of Chairman and CEO

	 The Company is not having separate post of Chairman and CEO. Mr. Anil Agarwal is Chairman of the Company. However, 
in the Company no person is designated as CEO.

(e)	 Reporting of Internal Auditor

	 The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee. 

12. 	 Disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 

to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub - regulation (2) of regulation 46

	 The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to 
(i) of sub - regulation (2) of regulation 46.

	 DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT UNDER 
SCHEDULE V (F) OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS:

	 As confirmed by the R & T A, M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. the Company does not have any Demat Suspense Account/
Unclaimed Suspense Account.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR AND 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

To,
The Board of Directors,
Kridhan Infra Limited

In accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we certify that:

A.	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Kridhan Infra Limited for the year ended March 31, 
2021 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

2.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

1.	 the significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year, if any;

2.	 significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; 
and

3.	 that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Kridhan Infra Limited

Date: September 7, 2021	 Anil Agrawal	 Rajeshree Mishra

Place: Mumbai 	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 DIN: 00360114

CODE OF CONDUCT – DECLARATION
In accordance with Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm 
that the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct 
of Board of Directors and Senior Management as applicable to them for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

For Kridhan Infra Limited

Date: September 7, 2021	 Anil Agrawal

Place: Mumbai 	 Chairman & Managing Director

	 DIN: 00360114
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Secretarial Auditors’ Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance

To,

The Members of
Kridhan Infra Limited,
Mumbai

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Company”) for the 
year ended on 31st March, 2021 as stipulated in Regulation 27(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 of the said Company with the BSE Limited and NSE India Limited.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance 
for ensuring. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

for Rinkesh Gala & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

Rinkesh Gala 

Proprietor

ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128 

Peer Review No: 847/2020

UDIN: A042486C000871138

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 1, 2021
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
Kridhan Infra Limited,
Mumbai.

We have examined the relevant Registers, Records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Kridhan Infra Limited, 
having CIN: L27100MH2006PLC160602 and having registered office at 203, Joshi Chambers, Ahmedabad Street, Carnac 
Bunder, Masjid (East), Mumbai – 400 009 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 
2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory.

Sr. No.	 Name of Director	 DIN	 Date of Appointment

1.	 Anil Dhanpat Agrawal	 00360114	 21-03-2006

2.	 Mahesh Kumar Garg	 03157824	 25-08-2010

3.	 Abhijit Ranade	 03247451	 29-09-2010

4.	 Shekhar Bhuwania	 03604299	 06-12-2017

5.	 Priya Dilipbhai Shah	 07594589	 15-04-2019

6.	 Mahdav Deshpande	 01537794	 14-08-2020

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company.

Thanking You,

for Rinkesh Gala & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Rinkesh Gala 
Proprietor

ACS No.42486 | C.P. No.20128 
Peer Review No: 847/2020

UDIN: A042486C000870984
Place: Mumbai
Date: September 1, 2021
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To,
The Members of Kridhan Infra Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2021, the statement 
of profit and loss, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

It may be noted that due to COVID-19 pandemic there was 
lockdown and hence restriction on physical movements, social 
distancing, work timings, work from home, etc. Besides that the 
place of business was in Red Zone classification of lockdown. 
Hence, we were unable to visit the place of business frequently 
and had to rely on information digitally provided to conduct 
audit procedures.  Due to this, opinion expressed in this report is 
mainly based on the information, explanation, facts, supporting 
and other requirements made available to us through electronic 
medium by the management.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SA’s) issued by ICAI and specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

a)	 We draw attention to Note No. 30 & 40 of the standalone 
financial statements, wherein the company has stated that 
it has provided for impairment loss of Rs. 655.92 Lacs in 
respect of its receivables and loans and advances.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 
31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in 
that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key 
audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled 
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements section 
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, 
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to 
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our 
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address 
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Our audit procedures included the following:

Understood Management’s process and control for determining 
tax litigations and other litigations and claims and its appropriate

Tested key controls surrounding such litigations Discussed 
pending matters with the Company’s legal department Assessed 
management’s conclusions through understanding precedents 
set in similar cases.

We have assessed the appropriateness of presentation of the 
most significant contingent liabilities in the standalone financial 
statements

Key Audit Matter	 How our audit addressed the matter

Impairment of investments in subsidiary companies

The company has made investments in equity and other 
instruments issued by its subsidiary company which carry on 
business in different geographical areas and are thus exposed 
to risks that are significantly different from those to which the 
company is exposed. In terms of the requirement of Ind AS 36 
– Impairment of Assets, the company is required to evaluate 
the impairment loss, if any, on these investments which is done 
by carrying out an impairment testing of these investments. 
Such impairment testing is done by comparing the cost of 
such investments vis-à-vis the value in use that these investee 
subsidiary companies generate / potentially generate over the 
future envisaged life span. The determination of the recoverable 
amount from the subsidiary is a technical matter and involves 
significant judgements w.r.t. the amount that may be recovered 
and hence the evaluation of impairment of investments in 
subsidiary companies has been considered as a key audit 
matter.

Our audit procedures includes the following:

a)	 Reviewed the past earnings. The Singapore Subsidiary 
in which the company has made investment is under 
liquidation hence there shall be no future earnings.

b)	 Discussed the realisable value of the net assets of the 
subsidiaries to evaluate the impairment from a distress sale 
point of view.  The company has impaired the investment 
in subsidiary fully. In the absence of any documents the 
impairment value could not be ascertained by us.

Litigation and Claims

Litigation and claims are pending with multiple tax and 
regulatory authorities and there are claims from vendors/
suppliers and employees which have not been acknowledged 
as debt by the company. 

In the normal course of business, financial exposures may arise 
from pending legal/regulatory proceedings and from above 
referred claims not acknowledged as debt by the company. 
Whether a claim needs to be recognized as liability, disclosed 
as contingent liability or considered as remote in the standalone 
financial statements is dependent on a number of significant 
assumptions and judgments. The amounts involved are 
potentially significant and determining the amount, if any, to be 
recognized or disclosed in the financial statements, is inherently 
subjective. 

We have considered Litigations and claims as Key Audit Matter 
as it requires significant management judgment, including 
accounting estimates that involves high estimation uncertainty.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone 

Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.
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•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 
(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
we give in Annexure – I a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 

law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply, in material respect, with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in Annexure II.

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

	 i)	 The Company does not have any pending litigations 
which would have a material impact its financial 
position other those disclosed at Note No. 42;

	 ii)	 Based on the assessment made by the company, there 
are no material foreseeable losses on its long term 
contracts that may require any provisioning;

	 iii)	 In view of there being no amounts required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund for the year under audit, the reporting under this 
clause is not applicable.

For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R. Kotecha
Proprietor
M No. 036309
UDIN : 21036309AAAABV6951
Mumbai, 30th June, 2021
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Annexure – A to the Independent Auditors Report 

Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to 
the members of Kridhan Infra Limited for the year 
ended March 31, 2021		

i) 	 (a)	The company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of its fixed assets.

	 (b)	The fixed assets of the company have been physically 
verified by the management in a phased manner 
and no material discrepancies have been noticed 
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable.

	 (c)	 The title of the immovable assets of the company are 
in its name.		

ii)	 (a)	In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations provided to us, we are of the view that 
the company has a system of physical verification of 
its inventory, the frequency of which is reasonable.

	 (b)	In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations provided to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification 
of the same.	

iii)	 The company has granted unsecured loans to companies 
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of 
the Companies Act 2013 and with respect to the same:

	 a)	 In our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of 
such loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the 
Company’s interest,

	 b)	 The schedule of repayment of principal and payment 
of interest has been generally stipulated and the 
repayment/receipts of the principal amount and the 
interest are not regular in respect of which provision 
for impairment has been made. 

	 c)	 There is overdue amount in respect of loans granted to 
such companies which have been duly provided for.

iv)	 As per the information and explanations given to us, 
in respect of loans, investments and guarantees, the 
company has complied with the provisions of Section 
185 and 186 of the Act.	

v)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the company has not accepted 
any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, 

the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules 
framed thereunder are not applicable. 	

vi)	 As per the information and explanations provided to 
us, we are of the opinion that the maintenance of cost 
records has been not been specified by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Act for the company.	

vii)	 (a)	According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on the records of the company 
examined by us, the company is generally regular 
in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income‐
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and any other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities in India.

		  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, there are no undisputed amounts in respect 
of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as 
at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

	 (b)	According to the information and explanations given 
to us, there are certain cases of applicable statutory 
dues which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute, which are detailed hereunder: 

	 Name of 	 Forum where	 FY to which	 Amount
	 Statute and 	 dispute is	 the amount	 involved
	 Nature of 	 pending	 relates	 (Rs. in Lacs)
	 Dues

	 Sales Tax	 Deputy Commissioner of	 2009-10,2010-11,	 1447.39
		  Sales Tax (Appeals)	 2011-12

		  Commissioner of	 2011-12	 636.53
		  Income Tax (Appeals)

	 Income Tax	 Commissioner of	 2017-18	 2.18
	under Income	 Income Tax (Appeals)

	Tax Act, 1961	Commissioner of Income 	 2018-19	 65.71
		  Tax (Appeals)

viii)	 Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on 
the basis of information and explanations provided by the 
management we are of the opinion that the company has 
not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial 
Institutions. The company does not have any borrowings 
from government and the company has not issued any 
debentures as at the balance sheet date.
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ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans taken by the 
company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose 
for which they were taken. Further, the company has 
not raised any funds by way of initial / further public 
offer.	

x)	 Based on the audit procedures performed by us for 
the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and as per the information and 
explanations given to us by the management, we report 
that we have neither come across any instance of fraud 
by the company or on the company by its officers 
or employees, noticed or reported during the year, 
nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
management. 	

xi)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of records of 
the company, the company has paid/ provided for 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
section 197 read with schedule V of the Act.	

xii)	 The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the 
reporting requirements under clause (xii) of paragraph 
3 of the order are not applicable.   	

xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, all transactions entered into by the company 
with related parties are in compliance with section 
177 and 178 of the Act where applicable and the 
details thereof have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 	

xiv)	 The company has made preferential allotment of shares 
during the year under audit in compliance with sec 42 
of the Act and the funds have been utilised for stated 
purpose. 	

xv)	 As per the information and explanations provided to 
us, the company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them. 	

xvi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the company is not required to 
be registered under Section 45 – IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India, 1934. 

For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R. Kotecha
Proprietor
M No. 036309
UDIN : 21036309AAAABV6951

Mumbai,30th June, 2021
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Annexure – B  to the Independent Auditors 
Report 

Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, to 
the members of Kridhan Infra Limited for the year 
ended March 31, 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, 

based on  the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R. Kotecha
Proprietor
M No. 036309
UDIN : 21036309AAAABV6951
Mumbai, 30th June, 2021
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Standalone Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2021
			   Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars			   Note	 As at	 As at
				    No.	 31.03.2021	 31.03.2020
		   			   As per Ind AS 	  As per Ind AS
ASSETS
1.	 Non-Current Assets			 
	 a) Property Plant and Equipment	 5	  2,519.40 	  2,600.79 
    	 b) Financial Assets			 
        		 (i) Investments	 6	  10,907.43 	  11,313.05 
        		 (ii) Other Financial Assets	 7	  53.13 	  55.63 
    	 c) Other Non Current Assets			 
Total Non Current Assets		   13,479.95 	  13,969.47 	
2. 	 Current Assets
    	 a) Inventories		  8	  66.11 	  37.61 
    	 b) Investments		 9	  6.00 	  5.57 
    	 c) Financial Assets			 
        		 (i)Trade Receivables	 10	  2,799.45 	  3,860.08 
        		 (ii)Cash and cash equivalent	 11	  39.58 	  51.63 
        		 (iii)Loans & Advances	 12	  1,609.17 	  2,106.89 
    	 d) Other Current Assets	 13	  180.73 	  288.32 
Total Current Assets			    4,701.04 	  6,350.10 
TOTAL ASSETS			    18,181.00 	  20,319.58 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			 
1.	 Equity			 
    	 Equity Share Capital	 14	  1,895.58 	  1,895.58 
    	 Other Equity		  15	  10,671.44 	  11,446.18 
    	 Share and Warrant Application Money			    -   
Total Equity		   	 12,567.03 	  13,341.76
2. 	 Liabilities
A.	 Non-Current Liabilities			 
    	 a) Financial Liabilities			 
        		 (i) Borrowings	 16	  0.71 	  1.56 
        		 (ii) Other Non Current Liabilities	 17	  46.82 	  2,562.50 
    	 b) Deferred Tax Liability	 18	  75.61 	  68.48 
    	 c) Provisions		  19	  1.91 	  5.36 
Total Non Current Liabilities		   125.06 	  2,637.90
B. 	 Current Liabilities			 
    	 a) Financial Liabilities			 
        		 (i) Borrowings	 20	  1,919.96 	  1,783.75 
        		 (ii) Trade Payables	 21	  583.97 	  382.96 
        		 (iii) Others	 22	  2,877.20 	  1,622.25 
    	 b) Short Term Provisions	 23	  107.79 	  550.95 
Total Current Liabilities		   5,488.92 	  4,339.91
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		   18,181.00 	  20,319.58
Notes on Accounts and Policies forming an integral part of the financial statements	 1-52
In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 2021

Amount in ` Lakhs
Particulars			   Note	 Year Ended	 Year Ended
				    No.	 31-03-2021	 31-03-2020
					     Ind AS  	  Ind AS

Income
Revenue from operations	 24	  2,741.02 	  1,878.59 
Other income		  25	  155.95 	  238.38 
Total Income			   2,896.97 	  2,116.97 
Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-trade	 26	  2,640.42 	  1,460.64 
Consumables and other direct costs	 26	  24.90 	  30.60 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods		   -29.00 	  303.22 
Employee benefits expense	 27	  27.68 	  63.15 
Finance costs		  28	  200.03 	  213.71 
Depreciation and amortisation expense		   78.38 	 67.55
Other expenses		  29	  65.73 	  88.82 
Total Expenses			    3,008.15 	  2,227.71 
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax		   -111.18 	  -110.74 
Exceptional items		  30	  -655.92 	 -1099.79
Profit / (Loss) before tax		  -767.10	 -1210.54
Tax Expense:			 
Current tax		  -   			   -5.13
Tax adjustments relating to previous year		   -   	 7.23
Deferred tax charge/ (credit)		  7.13	 3.15
MAT Credit Utilised			 
Total Tax Expenses		  7.13	 5.25
Profit (Loss) for the year 		  -774.23	 -1215.78
Other Comprehensive Income			 
A	 (i)	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss			    -   
       		  Remeasurements - On post employment benefit plan - gratuity			    -   
        	(ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or   			    -   
              	 loss			 
B     	 (i) 	 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss			    -   
       	 (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss			    -   
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings per equity share: [Nominal Value per share: Rs.2 (2020 : Rs.2)]	 39		
	 ‘    ‘	 -Basic EPS (in `)		  -0.82	 -1.28
	 ‘    ‘	 -Diluted EPS (in `)		  -0.82	 -1.28
	 ‘    ‘	 -Number of shares considered for Basic EPS		   947.79 	  947.79 
	 ‘    ‘	 -Number of shares considered for Diluted EPS		   947.79 	  947.79 
Notes on Accounts and Policies forming an integral part of the financial statements	 1-52
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In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Amount in ` Lakhs

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW	  FY 2020-21 	  FY 2019-20 

Cash flow from Operating Activities		
Net Profit before tax and adjustment of extraordinary items net of prior year adjustment	  (767.60)	  (1,210.52)
Adjustments for :		
      Depreciation	  78.38 	  67.55 
      Exchange Loss / (Gain) - Non cash item	  -   	  0.69 
      Interest and Dividend received	  (153.68)	  (183.26)
      Interest & Finance charges 	  200.03 	  213.71 
      Sundry Creditors written back		   (55.12)
      Provisions	  -   	  -   
      Loss on scrapping of assets	  0.37 	  1.42 
      Exceptional Items	  655.92 	  1,099.79 
Operating Profit before working capital changes	  13.42 	  (65.74)
Working Capital Changes / Adjustments for 		
Inventories	  (28.50)	  303.22 
Receivables	  797.31 	  (516.92)
Loans & Advances and Other Assets	  214.00 	  339.32 
Trade Payables & Other Current liabilities including provisions	  (1,502.00)	  266.11 
Cash generated / used from operations	  (519.19)	  391.73 
Direct Taxes 	  -   	  -   
Net cash from (used in) Operating Activities (A)	  (505.77)	  325.99 
Cash flow From Investing Activities		
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net)	  403.43 	  (435.34)
Sale of Fixed Assets 	  3.82 	  6.25 
Interest and Dividend Received	  153.68 	  182.15 
Non-Current Assets and Liabilities	  1.51 	  4.06 
Net Cash from (used in) Investing Activities (B)	  562.44 	  (242.88)
Cash flow From Financing Activities:		
Repayment of  Borrowings	  131.31 	  23.04 
Loan Interest Income		
Interest and finance charges	  (200.03)	  (213.71)
Net cash from Financing Activities (C )	  (68.72)	  (190.67)
Total Cash Inflow (A) + (B) + (C )	  (12.05)	  (107.56)
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash or Cash Equivalent	  (12.05)	  (107.56)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year 	  51.63 	  159.19 
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year	  39.58 	  51.63 
This cash flow has been prepared in indirect method as per IndAS 7 issued by ICAI
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Statement of Changes in Equity
i) Equity Share Capital

			   Amount in ` Lakhs
Particulars	 Amount

Opening as at 01 April 2018	  1,895.58
Closing as at 31 March 2019	  1,895.58
Closing as at 31 March 2020	  1,895.58
Movement during FY 2020-21	  -
Closing as at 31 March 2021	  1,895.58

ii) Other Equity			                                   Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars		  Reserves and Surplus

				    Securities Premium	 Capital Reserve	 Retained Earnings	 Total

Balance as at March 31, 2018	 25,901.11 	  100.00 	  1,612.13 	  27,613.24 
Additions during the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Profit for the year		   -   	  -   	  -15,259.42 	  -15,259.42 
Utilisation during the year	  9.34 	  -   	  -   	  9.34 
Payment of dividends	  -   	  -   	  189.51 	  189.51 
Tax on dividends	  	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Transferred to General Reserve	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2019	  25,891.76 	  100.00 	  -13,835.80 	  12,155.96 
Additions during the year	  -   	  506.25 	  -1,215.78 	  -709.53 
Profit for the year	  	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Utilisation during the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Payment of dividends	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Tax on dividends	  	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Transferred to General Reserve	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2020	  25,891.76 	  606.25 	  -15,051.58 	  11,446.44 
Additions during the year				     -   
Profit for the year				     -774.73 	  -774.73 
Balance as at March 31, 2021	  25,891.76 	  606.25 	  -15,826.31 	  10,671.70

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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1	 Corporate Information

	 Kridhan Infra Limited (‘Kridhan’ or ‘the Company’) is a 
public limited company domiciled and incorporated in 
India having its registered office at 203, Joshi Chambers, 
Ahmedabad Street, Carnac Bunder, Masjid. Mumbai- 
400 009. The Company’s shares are listed and traded 
on Stock Exchanges in India. The Company is engaged 
in the business of trading in iron and steel and allied 
materials.

2.	 Application of new Indian Accounting 
Standards

2.1	 All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and notified by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) 
till the financial statements are authorized have been 
considered in preparation of these Financial Statements.

2.2	 Standards issued but not yet effective

	 The MCA has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards/ Ind AS) Amendment Rules, 2019 on March 
30, 2019, whereby Ind AS-116 relating to “Leases” has 
been made applicable from financial year 2019-20 (i.e. 
April 1, 2019 onwards) 

	 Ind AS 116 Leases

	 The Standard supersedes the existing Ind AS 17 “Leases”. 
Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model 
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities 
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months unless 
the underlying asset is of low value and sets out the 
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation 
and disclosure of leases. The Company is evaluating the 
requirements of the same and its effect on the Financial 
Statements is not likely to be material Amendment to Ind 
AS 109 Financial Instruments

	 The amendment to Ind AS 109 requires accounting for 
prepayment features with negative compensation in case 
of debt instruments. As the Company does not have any 
such financial instruments which meet the conditions, the 
amendment has no effect on the financial statements.

	 Amendment to Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

	 The amendment to Ind AS 111 prescribes accounting in 

case of obtaining joint control of an operation wherein 
there was no joint control earlier. As the Company 
does not have any contracts of Joint arrangement, the 
amendment has no effect on the financial statements of 
the Company.  

	 Amendment to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

	 The amendment to Ind AS 12 requires recognition  
of income tax consequences of dividends when an 
entity recognises a liability to pay a dividend in profit or  
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according 
to where the entity originally recognised those past 
transactions or events. Further amendment to Appendix C 
to Ind AS 12 provides the requirements of the amendment 
are to be applied while performing the determination  
of taxable profit (or Tax Loss), tax bases, unused tax 
losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates, when there is 
uncertainty over income tax treatment of an item by tax 
authorities.

	 The Company is evaluating the requirements of the same 
and its effect on the Financial Statements. However, the 
impact is not likely to be material.

	 Amendment to Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits

	 The amendment to Ind AS 19 prescribes accounting for 
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurring 
in-between the reporting periods in case of long-term 
employee benefit plans. The Company does not have 
any amendment, curtailment or settlement occurring 
in-between the reporting period in case of long-term 
employee benefit plans, the amendment has no effect on 
the financial statements of the Company. The Company 
will apply the requirements when there is any amendment, 
curtailment or settlement of any long term employee 
benefit plan. 

	 Amendment to Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs

	 The amendment to Ind AS 23 prescribes the accounting 
treatment for specific borrowings post capitalization of 
corresponding qualifying asset.

	 As the Company does not have any borrowings for  
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the 
amendment has no effect on the financial statements of 
the Company.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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3.	 Significant accounting policies

3.1	 Statement of compliance

	 In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 
2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards 
(referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) 
with effect from April 1, 2017.

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). 

3.2	 Basis of preparation

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost convention on accrual basis except for 
certain assets that are measured at fair values at the end 
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting 
policies below.

	 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the 
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

	 As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal 
course, the same has been assumed to have duration 
of 12 months. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities 
have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out 
in Ind AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The Standalone Financial Statements are presented 
in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the 
nearest two decimal lakhs except otherwise stated.

	 Fair value measurement

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date 
under current market conditions. 

	 The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value into one of three levels depending on the 
ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement 
which are described as follows:

(a)	 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

(b)	 Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, 
either directly or indirectly, other than quoted 

prices included within level 1 for the asset or 
liability. 

(c)	 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability reflecting significant modifications 
to observable related market data or Company’s 
assumptions about pricing by market participants.

3.3	 Investments in subsidiaries and associates 

	 The Company records the investments in subsidiaries and 
associates at cost less impairment loss, if any. 

	 On disposal of investment in subsidiary and associate, 
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amounts (including corresponding value of 
dilution in deemed investment) are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Interest free loans provided to subsidiary are recognized 
at amount paid on the date of disbursement. 

3.4	 Property, Plant and Equipment 

	 The Company had elected to continue with the carrying 
value of all of its Property, Plant and Equipment 
recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured 
as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as 
its deemed cost as of the transition date except in respect 
of its Land which has been measured at Fair Value as on 
the transition date.

	 Freehold land is not depreciated.

	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) used for business 
purposes are carried at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and recognised impairment loss. The cost of 
an asset comprises its purchase price or its construction 
cost (net of applicable tax credits), any cost directly 
attributable to bring the asset into the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by the Management. It includes 
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing 
costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s 
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the 
appropriate categories of PPE when completed and 
ready for intended use. Parts of an item of PPE having 
different useful lives and significant value and subsequent 
expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment arising 
on account of capital improvement or other factors are 
accounted for as separate components. 

	 Depreciation of PPE commences when the assets are 
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ready for their intended use.

	 Depreciation is provided over the useful life of PPE as 
stated in the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or 
based on technical assessment by the Company. 

	 The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
method are reviewed periodically and if necessary, 
changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

	 Depreciation on additions / deletions to PPE during the 
year is provided for on a pro-rata basis with reference to 
the date of additions/deletions except low value items not 
exceeding  ` 5,000/- which are fully depreciated at the 
time of addition.

	 An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from 
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on 
the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined 
as the difference between the net sales proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.5	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately

	 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired 
separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives not exceeding five years from 
the date of capitalisation. The estimated useful life is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the 
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for 
prospectively.

	 Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal, or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset are determined as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset, and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
when the asset is derecognised.

3.6	 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

	 The Company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible 
and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period 
to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 

is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). 

	 An assessment is made at the end of each reporting 
period to see if there are any indications that impairment 
losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may 
have come down. The impairment loss is reversed, if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the previous impairment 
loss was recognized. If it is so, the carrying amount of the 
asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount 
and the carrying amount that have been determined, 
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the asset in prior years. After a reversal, 
the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to 
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any 
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining 
useful life. Reversals of Impairment loss are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7	 Inventories comprising of saleable stock are valued at 
cost or Net Realisable Value, whichever is lower. 

	 Consumable stock are valued at Cost.

3.8	 Revenue recognition

(i)	 Revenue is recognised when the property in the goods 
is transferred in favor of the customer, which normally 
coincides with the date of physical delivery. In case of 
transit sales where goods are transferred by transfer 
of the documents of title, revenue is recognised on the 
transfer of the document of title.

	 Revenue from services is recognized when the outcome 
of services can be estimated reliably and it is probable 
that the economic benefits associated with rendering of 
services will flow to the Company, and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable 
for goods and services provided in the normal course of 
business, net of discounts, service tax and sales tax etc. 
Any retrospective revision in prices is accounted for in the 
year of such revision.

(ii)	 Interest on Fixed Deposits is recognised on accrual basis.

(iii)	 Income from sale of Scrap is accounted on cash basis.

(iv)	 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
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3.9	 Foreign Exchange Transactions

	 The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees 
which represents the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which it operates.

	 Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s 
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised 
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, 
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated using mean exchange rate prevailing on the 
last day of the reporting period. 

	 Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
they arise.

3.10	 Borrowing Cost 

	 Interest/Finance Cost on loans specifically borrowed for 
and expansion of projects, upto the point when the project 
is ready for start of commercial production is charged to 
the capital cost of the projects concerned. 

	 All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

3.11	 Employee Benefits

	 Employee benefits include salaries, wages, provident 
fund, gratuity, and other terminal benefits.

	 All short term employee benefits are recognized at their 
undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which 
they are incurred.

	 Defined contribution plans

	 Employee Benefit under defined contribution plans 
comprising provident fund is recognized based on the 
undiscounted amount of obligations of the Company to 
contribute to the plan. The same is paid to the EPFO and 
charged to the statement of profit and loss.

	 Defined benefit plans

	 Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity 
and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on 
the present value of defined benefit obligation which is 
computed using the projected unit credit method, with 
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each 
annual reporting period. These are accounted either as 
current employee cost or included in cost of assets as 
permitted.

	 The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the 
Financial Statements represents the actual deficit or 
surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any 
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the 
present value of any economic benefits available in the 
form of reductions in future contributions to the plans.

3.12	 Income Taxes

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax 
and deferred tax.

	 Current tax

	 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for 
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ 
as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because 
of items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable 
or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated 
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax 
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will 
be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. 

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilized.

	 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

	 The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets 
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 
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3.13	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

	 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 
the consideration required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the 
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When 
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated 
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the 
time value of money is material).

	 Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements 
by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial 
Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility 
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit 
is remote.

3.14	 Financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised 
when Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. 

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are 
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.15	 Equity instruments

	 Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded 
at the proceeds received.

3.16	 Financial assets

(i)	 Cash and cash equivalents 

	 The Company considers all highly liquid financial 
instruments, which are readily convertible into 

known amounts of cash that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value and having 
original maturities of three months or less from the 
date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash 
and cash equivalents consist of balances with 
banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and 
usage.

(ii)	 Financial assets at amortised cost 

	 Financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method 
if these financial assets are held within a business 
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

(iii)	 Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 

	 Financial assets are measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income if these financial 
assets are held within a business whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

	 The Company has made an irrevocable election to 
present in other comprehensive income subsequent 
changes in the fair value of equity investments not 
held for trading. 

(iv)	 Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 

	 Financial assets are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised 
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income on initial recognition.

(v)	 Impairment of financial assets 

	 The Company assesses at each balance sheet 
date whether a financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires 
expected credit losses to be measured through 
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a loss allowance. The Company recognises 
lifetime expected losses for trade receivables 
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For 
all other financial assets, expected credit losses 
are measured at an amount equal to 12 month 
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to 
lifetime expected losses, if the credit risk on the 
financial asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition.

(vi)	 Derecognition of financial assets

	 The Company derecognises a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial 
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. 

	 On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety 
(except for equity instruments designated as 
FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received and receivable is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.17	 Financial liabilities

a)	 Financial liabilities 

	 Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

b)	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 The Company derecognises financial liabilities 
when, and only when, the Company’s obligations 
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. 
The difference between the carrying amount 
of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.18	 Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the 
net profit after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after 
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and 
also the weighted average number of equity shares that 
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

3.19	 Cash Flow Statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby 
profit after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of 
a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of 
income or expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operating, 
investing and financing activities.

3.20	 Segment reporting

	 Operating segments are identified and reported 
taking into account the different risks and returns, the 
organization structure and the internal reporting systems.

4.	 Critical Accounting Judgments, Assumptions 
and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

	 Inherent in the application of many of the accounting 
policies used in preparing the Financial Statements is 
the need for Management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses. Actual outcomes could differ from the estimates 
and assumptions used. 

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 
revised and future periods are affected.

	 Key source of judgments, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainty in the preparation of the Financial Statements 
which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year, are in respect of impairment, useful lives of Property, 
Plant and Equipment, employee benefit obligations, 
impairment, provision for income tax, measurement of 
deferred tax assets and contingent assets and liabilities.

4.1	 Critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies

	 The following are the critical judgements, apart from those 
involving estimations (Note 4.2), that the Management 
have made in the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies and that have the significant effect on 
the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements.

(a)	 Determination of functional currency

	 Currency of the primary economic environment 
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in which the Company operates (“the functional 
currency”) is Indian Rupee (`) in which the 
Company primarily generates and expends cash. 
Accordingly, the Management has assessed its 
functional currency to be Indian Rupee (`).

(b)	 Classification of investment 

	 Judgement is required in assessing the level of 
control obtained in a transaction to acquire an 
interest in another entity; depending upon the facts 
and circumstances in each case, the Company may 
obtain control, joint control or significant influence 
over the entity or arrangement. Transactions 
which give the Company control of a business are 
business combinations. If the Company obtains 
joint control of an arrangement, judgement is also 
required to assess whether the arrangement is a 
joint operation or a joint venture. If the Company 
has neither control nor joint control, it may be in a 
position to exercise significant influence over the 
entity, which is then classified as an associate.

4.2	 Assumptions and key sources of estimation 
uncertainty

	 Information about estimates and assumptions that have 

the significant effect on recognition and measurement of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a)	 Impairment of assets

	 Determination as to whether, and by how much, 
asset is impaired involves Management estimates on 
uncertain matters such as future prices, the effects of 
inflation on operating expenses, discount rate etc. 

(b)	 Litigations

	 From time to time, the Company is subject to 
legal proceedings and the ultimate outcome of 
each being always subject to many uncertainties 
inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation 
is made when it is considered probable that a 
payment will be made and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment 
is made when evaluating, among other factors, 
the probability of unfavourable outcome and the 
liability to make a reasonable estimate of the 
amount of potential loss. Provision for litigations 
are reviewed at the end of each accounting period 
and revisions made for the changes in facts and 
circumstances.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March, 2021
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 Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note No.                                 PARTICULARS

Note 6	 Investments 

	 	 As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021	 31.03.2020 

	 Investments in Unlisted Equity Instruments of subsidiaries : 		

	 Cost / Deemed Cost  	  3,056.12 	  3,056.12 

	 Investments in Unlisted Preference Shares of subsidiaries : 		

	 Cost / Deemed Cost * 	  8,212.41 	  8,212.41 

	 Investments in Subsidiary 	  11,268.53 	  11,268.53 

	 Less: Provision for impairment 	  11,268.53 	  11,268.53 

	 Carrying amount of Investments in subsidiary 	  -   	  -   

	 Investments in Unlisted Equity Instruments of Associates 		

	 Cost / Deemed Cost  	  9,841.70 	  9,841.70 

	 Additons during the year 		

	 Disposal and / or Impairment  		

	 Balance as at the year end 	  9,841.70 	  9,841.70 

	 Other Investment(s) in Associates and Subsidiary 	  1,465.72 	  1,871.35 

	 Less: Provision for impairment 	  400.00 	  400.00 

	 Carrying amount of Investments  	  1,065.72 	  1,471.35 

	 Total	  10,907.43 	  11,313.05 

	 (Refer Note No. 31 for details of Subsidiaries and Associates)		

	 *represents conversion of loan amount into preference shares

Note 7	 Other Financial Assets 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Security Deposit	  13.76 	 16.08

	 Retention Deposit	  39.37 	 39.55

		   53.13 	  55.63 

Note 8	 Current Assets 	

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Inventories 		

	 Stock in Trade - Finished Goods 	  66.11 	  37.61 

	 (As verified and valued by the management) 		

	 (Valued at Cost or market value whichever is lower) 		

		   66.11 	  37.61 
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Note 9	 Current Investmemts  

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Unquoted, at fair value 		

	 In Debt Scheme of Mutual Funds 	  6.00 	  5.57 

		   6.00 	  5.57 

	 Details of Investments: 		

	 Particulars 		

	 Unquoted Investments

	 Investments in Mutual funds (Fair value through profit or loss)		

	 ‘- Union BankCorporate Debt Fund 		

	 No. of Units  	  50,000 	  50,000 

	 Cost ` In Lakhs 	  5.00 	  5.00 

Note 10	 Trade Receivables 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Current : 		

	 Unsecured, Considered good: 	  2,799.45 	  3,860.08 

	 From Related Parties 	  -   	  -   

	 Others 	  2,799.45 	  3,860.08 

	 Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable 	  -   	  -   

		   2,799.45 	  3,860.08 

10.1:	 The average credit period on sales is 60 - 90 days. No interest is charged during this credit period. Thereafter, interest 
on delayed payments is charged at SBI Base rate plus 4%-6% per annum on the outstanding balance in respect of a few 
debtors.

10.2:	 There is no single party concentration of the receivables.

10.3:	 Further, based on assessement made by the management, depending on the past history, management does not expect any 
material loss on realisation of these receivables except for some provision made in the accounts. Based on its assessment 
and depending upon the realisability of the debts, management has written off some old receivables which are no longer 
receivable.

Note 11	 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Balances with Banks: 		

	       ‘ In current account 	  23.40 	  7.14 

	       ‘ In deposit account 	  10.31 	  35.73 

	  Cash on hand 	  5.88 	  8.76 

		   39.58 	  51.63 
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Note 12	 Loans & Advances 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Unsecured, considered good: 		

	 To Related Parties: 		

	 Short Term Loan given to subsidiaries 		

	 - Interest Bearing  	  1,516.75 	  1,516.75 

	 - Interest Free 	  -   	

	 Short Term Loan given to Associates and its Director 	  94.29 	  94.29 

	 Dividend from Subsidiaries 	  25.62 	  25.62 

		   1,636.66 	  1,636.66 

	  Less : Provision for Impairment of receivables* 	  1,542.38 	  1,542.38 

	  Carrying amount  	  94.29 	  94.29 

	  To Others: 		

	  Inter Corporate Deposits given 	  1,208.99 	  1,159.66 

	  Less : Provision for Doubtful debts of receivables 	  390.68 	  -   

		   818.31 	  1,159.66 

	  Loans to Other concerns 	  696.57 	  848.06 

	  Staff Advances 	  -   	  4.89 

		   1,514.88 	  2,012.61 

		   1,609.17 	  2,106.89 

*	 represents amounts of Rs. 15.42 crs. receivable from Singapore subsidiary company which is under liquidation process for 
which provision has been made on a prudent basis, pending outcome of the said process.		

Note 13	 Other Current Assets 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Advances to Suppliers / Other receivables 	  29.42 	  288.32 

	 Advance Income Tax, TDS and Others (net) 	  151.31 	  -   

		   180.73 	  288.32 

Note 14	 Equity Share Capital 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Authorised Share Capital 		

	 10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 	  2,000.00 	  2,000.00 

	 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up share capital 		

	 As at the beginning of the year 	  1,895.58 	  1,895.58 

	 Closing Equity share capital 	  1,895.58 	  1,895.58 
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14.1	 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the 		
	 reporting period

	 Particulars 		   No. of shares 

	 Balance at March 31, 2020 		   94,779,205 

	 Balance at March 31, 2021 		   94,779,205 

14.2	 Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares 		

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of 
the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.		

	 “In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.“

14.3	 Shareholders holding more than 5% shares 	  As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Name of the shareholder	  No. of shares 	  No. of shares 

	 Anil Agrawal	  26,260,160 	  26,260,160 

	 Krish Steel & Trading (P) Ltd. (Formerly known as Kridhan Infrastructures (P) Ltd)	  11,381,000 	  11,381,000 

	 Kridhan Petrochemicals (P) Ltd	  7,000,000 	  7,000,000 

Note 15	 Other Equity 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

(i)	 Securities Premium  		

	 Opening Balance 	  25,892.04 	  25,892.04 

	 Additions during the year 	  -   	  -   

	 Utilisation during the year 	  -   	  -   

	 Closing Balance as at the year end 	  25,892.04 	  25,892.04 

(ii)	 Capital Reserves 		

	 Opening Balance 	  606.25 	  100.00 

	 Additions during the year 	  -   	  506.25 

	 Closing Balance as at the year end 	  606.25 	  606.25 

(iii)	 Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss / Retained Earnings 		

	 Opening Balance 	  (15,052.11)	  (13,836.06)

	 Add: Profit for the year 	  (774.73)	  (1,215.78)

	 Add: Unammortized Transaction cost/ other adjustments 		   (0.27)

	 Closing Balance as at the year end 	  (15,826.84)	  (15,052.11)

		   10,671.44 	  11,446.18 

	 Capital Reserve as on 01-Apr-2021 represents the amount of share warrant money received which has been forfeited since 
the balance amount due as call money on these share warrants were not paid.
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Note 16	 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Secured Term loan from banks  	  1.88 	  2.51 

	 Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing 	  1.17 	  0.96 

		   0.71 	  1.56 

Security Details 		

i)  Vehicle Loan are secured against the respective vehicles. 		

Terms of Repayment details 		

The term loans represents vehicle loan which is repayable in 63 EMI upto 2023.

Note 17	 Other Non Current Liabilities 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Retention Payable 	  46.82 	  6.85 

	 Payable due to Guarantees Invoked 	  -   	  2,555.66 

		   46.82 	  2,562.50 

Note 18	 Deferred Tax Liability 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Component of Deferred Tax Liability 		

	 “ Timing Difference on account of difference in depreciation and Gratuity “	 75.61 	  68.48 

		   75.61 	  68.48 

Note 19	 Provisions 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Provision for Employee Benefits: 		

	 Opening Balance as at the beginning of the year 	  5.36 	  10.22 

	 Add: Additions during the year 	  (3.45)	  (4.85)

	 Closing Balance as at the year end 	  1.91 	  5.36 

Note 20	 Short Term Borrowings 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	 Secured Working Capital facilities from Bank 	  1,918.79 	  1,782.78 

	 UBI Car Loan (secured against Honda Amaze) 	  1.17 	  0.96 

		   1,919.96 	  1,783.74 

i) Working facilities are secured by Equitable Mortgage of the Factory Land & Building Situated at Village Vanwathe, Khopoli, 
Taluka, Khalapur, Raigad, Maharashtra. Further, secured by charge on Plant & Machineries of the company. Also secured by 
office premises of the Director.

ii) Further secured by Personal Guarantee of Director Mr. Anil Agrawal.		

iii) Vehicle Loan are secured against the respective vehicles.
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Note 21	  Trade Payables 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	 31.03.2020 

	  Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 	  -   	  -   

	  Others 	  583.97 	  382.96 

		   583.97 	  382.96 

Note 22	  Other Financial Liabilities 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	  31.03.2020 

	  Creditors for Revenue Expenditure 	  17.52 	  22.27 

	  Payable due to Guarantees Invoked 	  2,555.66 	  -   

	  Short Term Unsecured Borrowing from Promoter Director 	  18.65 	  4.05 

	  Others 	  285.37 	  1,595.93 

		   2,877.20 	  1,622.25 

Note 23	  Provisions 

		   As at 	 As at

		  31.03.2021 	  31.03.2020 

	  Provision for Tax (Net) & others 	  22.00 	  3.36 

	  Provision for Bad Debts 	  80.72 	  547.59 

	  Others 	  5.07 	

		   107.79 	  550.95
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note 24 - Revenue From Operations

Particulars	  Year Ended 	 Year Ended

	 31-03-2021 	  31-03-2020 

Sale of Goods	  2,700.08 	 1813.01

Income from Services 		

Other Operating Income	  40.94 	 65.58

Revenue from Operations	  2,741.02 	  1,878.59 

Note 25 - Other Income		

Particulars	  Year Ended 	 Year Ended

	 31-03-2021 	  31-03-2020 

Non Operating Income	  155.95 	  238.38 

Other Income	  155.95 	  238.38 

Note 26 - Purchases		

Particulars	  Year Ended 	 Year Ended

	 31-03-2021 	  31-03-2020 

Purchases	  2,640.42 	  1,460.64 

Consumables and other Direct Costs	  24.90 	  30.60 

Purchases	  2,665.33 	  1,491.25 

Note 27 - Employee Costs		

Particulars	  Year Ended 	 Year Ended

	 31-03-2021 	  31-03-2020 

Salaries and Wages	  27.68 	 63.15

Employee Costs	  27.68 	  63.15 

Note 28 - Finance Cost		

Particulars	  Year Ended 	 Year Ended

	 31-03-2021 	  31-03-2020 

Interest & Discounting Charges paid to Bank(s) and FI	  194.73 	 204.99

Bank Charges 	  0.49 	 8.71

Other Charges	  4.81 	 0.01

Finance Cost	  200.03 	  213.71 

Note 29 - Other Expenses		

Particulars	  Year Ended 	 Year Ended

	 31-03-2021 	  31-03-2020 

Administrative, Selling and Other Expenses	  65.36 	 87.41

Loss on sale / scrapping of Fixed Assets	  0.37 	  1.42 

	  65.73 	  88.82 
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Break up of major expenses		

Rent Rates and Taxes 	  16.63 	  21.58 

BSE / NSE Listing and other Fees 	  5.40 	  5.90 

Audit Fees 	  2.25 	  2.50 

Loss on Foreign Exchange 	  -   	  0.69 

Legal & Professional Fees 	  14.44 	  22.50 

Travelling & Conveyance 	  1.75 	  3.87 

Note 30 - Exceptional Items		

Particulars	 Year Ended	 Year Ended	
	 31-03-2021 	  31-03-2020 

Impairment of Investments in equity instruments of Subsidiary company	  -   	 92.70

Impairment of Loans and advances and other recoverables from others	  390.68 	 455.06

Write-off of dues receivable	 9.67	  7.65 

Bad Debts Expenses	  255.57 	  544.38 

Total 	 655.92 	  1,099.79
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Amount in ` Lakhs

Note 31 : Details of Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates made by the company

Name of subsidiary	 Principal	 Place of
	 activity	  incorporation	
		  and principal	 As at	 As at
		  place of business	 March 31, 2021	 March 31, 2020
Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd.	 General 	 Singapore	 100%	 100%
	 wholesale trade

Cost of Investments held in unlisted equity shares 			   2963.42	 2963.42

Cost of Investments held in unlisted			   8212.41	 8212.41
preference shares

Kridhan Infra Solutions Pvt Ltd	 Services in	 India	 100%	 100%
	 Civil Engg

Cost of Investments held in unlisted equity shares 			   92.70	 92.70
(face value of Rs.10 each)

Name of Associate	 Principal	 Place of
	 activity	 incorporation and	
		  principal place	 As at	 As at
		  of business	 March 31, 2021	 March 31, 2020

Vijay Nirman Company Pvt. Ltd.	 All types of 	 India	 41.47%	 41.47%
	 civil projects

Cost of Investments held in unlisted equity shares			   9841.70	 9841.70
(face value Rs. 10 each)

Proportion of ownership interest/ 
voting rights held by the Company

Proportion of ownership interest/ 
voting rights held by the Company

Note 32 : Liquidity risk

“Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company 
manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation. 
The Company has obtained term loans and working capital facilities from banks.

As of March 31, 2021, the company had working capital (Total current assets - Total current liabilities) of Negative Rs. 787.87 Lakhs 
including cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 39.58 Lakhs. As of March 31, 2020, the Company had working capital (Total current 
assets - Total current liabilities) of Rs. 2010.19 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 51.63 Lakhs.“
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Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for 
all non derivative financial liabilities

Contractual cash flows

31-Mar-21	 Carrying 	 Total	 Less than	 1-2 years	 2-5 years	 More than
	 amount	   	 12 months			   5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings

Rupee Loans - From Banks	  1,920 	  1,920 	  1,920

Unsecured Loan - Rupee Loans - Others	  -   	  -   	  -

Other Financial Liabilities

Deferred Premium payable

Payables for  Goods & Services	  2,877 	  2,877 	  2,877

Trade payables	  584 	  584 	  584

Contractual cash flows

31-Mar-20	 Carrying 	 Total	 Less than 12	 1-2 years	 2-5 years	 More than
	 amount	  	 months			   5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities	

Borrowings	

Rupee Loans - From Banks	  1,786 	  1,786 	  1,784 	

Unsecured Loan - Rupee Loans - Others	  4 	  4 	  4 	

Other Financial Liabilities	

Deferred Premium payable	

Payables for  Goods & Services	  4,174 	  4,174 			 

Trade payables	  383 	  383	

Note 33 : Capital management	

For the purpose of the Company’s capital  management, capital  includes  issued equity  capital, share premium and all other 
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to 
maximise the shareholder value.	

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light  of changes in economic  conditions and the requirements 
of the financial  covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust  the dividend payment  to shareholders, 
return capital  to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by 
total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The Company includes within net debt, interest 
bearing  loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.
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	 Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars 	 March 31, 2021 	  March 31, 2020 

Borrowings (Note 16 & Note 20)	 1,921.84	  1,789.34 

Trade payables (Note 21)	  583.97 	  382.96 

Other Financial Liabilities (Note 17 & 22)	  2,924.02 	  4,180.71 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)	  39.58 	  51.63 

Net debt	 5,390.24	  6,301.38 

Equity	  1,895.58 	  1,895.58 

Total sponsor capital 	  1,895.58 	  1,895.58 

Capital and net debt	 7,285.83	  8,196.97 

Gearing ratio (%)	 73.98	  76.87 

Note 34 : Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006	

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the 
company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been 
made.The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been 
identified on the basis of information available with the company which have been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 35 : Fair Values

The carrying values of financials instruments of the Company are reasonable and approximations of fair values.

The management assessed that  cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current 
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Note 36: Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including revenue risk,market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of revenue risk. The Company’s risk management 
assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit 
Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. The company’s primary business is dealing in 
Iron and Steel products which is on credit to parties and are subjected to assessment of creditworthiness. The creditworthiness is 
periodically reviewed for any high credit risk receivable. Based on such assessment the management is of the view that there is a 
moderate credit risk in respect of its trade receivables.

Trade and other receivables

“The company’s primary business is trading and providing services. There are certain receivables arising from the same for 
which, required assessment of credit worthiness is being carried out by the company on a recurring basis based on which 
the company is of the view that there are no significant expected losses on account of its trade receivables. The age-wise 
breakup of the receivables is as under:“
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Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from its customers is as follows:

Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars	 31-Mar-21	 31-Mar-20

Neither past due nor impaired	 500.94	  2,221.88 

Past due but not impaired		   -   

Past due 1–90 days		

Past due 91–180 days	 460.54	  116.21 

Past due 181–270 days	  244.64 	  97.70 

Past due 271–365 days	  10.21 	  243.57 

Past due more than 365 days	 1583.13	  1,180.72 

	  2,799.45 	  3,860.08 

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and 
expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the 
macro economic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects 
the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due 
by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk.  
Hence, the company has not recognized any provision for expected credit loss till date. However, despite the best efforts made by 
management, some receivables which were continuing since earlier years could not be collected / realised due to which an amount 
of Rs 9.67 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.7.65 Lakhs) has been written off during the year and provision for bad debts for an amount of Rs.  
Nil (Previous Year Rs. 544.38) has been made.

Cash and cash equivalents

Out of total Cash and Cash equivalent of Rs. 39.58 Lacs and Rs. 51.63 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 
respectively, the Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions of Rs. 33.71 Lacs and Rs. 
42.87 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020 respectively. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions 
is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Guarantees	

The Company has provided the following financial guarantees:

Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars	 As at March 31, 2021	 As at March 31, 2020

Corporate Guarantees & Bank Guarantees	 19,555.13 	 19,555.13 

Corporate guarantees have been given to assist subsidiaries in availing banking facilities.

Bank guarantees are performance bank guarantees given to customers.		

Security deposits given to lessors		

The Company has not taken any premises on lease basis entailing payment of any material amount as Security Deposit. Hence, the 
said disclosure is not applicable	

Loans, investments in group companies 

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired.
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Note 37 : Financial risk management objectives and policies	

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.		

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk and 
Currency risk.

Market Risk	

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market  prices. 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity 
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and derivative financial 
instruments.	

The following table summaries the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the period by categories:

‘Carrying amount of Financial Assets and Liabilities:
Financial assets (carried at amortised cost) :

Particular	 March 31, 2021 	  March 31, 2020 

Loans	  1,609 	  2,107 

Trade receivable	  2,799 	  3,860 

Cash and cash equivalents	  40 	  52 

Others	  53 	  56 

At end of the period	  4,501 	  6,074 

Financial liabilities carried  at amortised cost

Borrowings (secured)	 1922	 1,785 

Borrowings (unsecured)	  -   	  4 

Trade payables	  584 	  383 

Other financial liabilities	  2,924 	  4,181 

At end of the period	 5430	  6,353

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.	

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared  on the basis that the amount  of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest  rates of 
the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and in place at  March 
31, 2021.

The following assumptions  have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect  of the assumed changes in respective market  risks. This is based on the 
financial  assets and financial  liabilities held at March 31,2021 and March 31, 2020.

‘Credit risk on Financial Assets		

The company is primarily engaged in the business of trading in Iron and Steel. Payments by it are typically not secured by any form 
of credit support such as letters of credit, performance guarantees or escrow arrangements. Credit  risk is the risk that counterparty 
will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument, leading to a financial  loss. The Company is exposed to credit  risk from  its 
operating activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange  transactions and other financial  
instruments.

Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counter-parties to discharge their obligations 
in full or in a timely manner consist principally of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and other assets. Credit risk on cash 
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balances with Bank are limited because the counterparties are entities with acceptable credit ratings.  The exposure to credit risk for 
trade receivable is low as it mainly consists of customers who are assessed by the management and the collection is received on timely 
basis within the credit period which is about 60 to 90 days.

	Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are past due as at the end of reporting year but not impaired:

Amount in ` Lakhs

	 March 31, 2021 	  March 31, 2020 

Less than 90 days	 500.94	 2221.88

Over 120 days	 2298.52	 1554.27	
	 2,799.45 	  3,776.14 

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities.	

The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 to 90 days. The other payables are with short-term durations. 
The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.			 
Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s top management in accordance with 
the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit  limits assigned 
to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the top management on an annual basis, and may be updated 
throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Board of Directors. The limits  are set to minimise the concentration of risks 
and therefore mitigate financial  loss through counterparty’s potential failure  to make payments.			 
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 
is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 10, 12 & 13. The Group’s maximum exposure relating to financial guarantees and 
financial derivative instruments is noted in notes and the liquidity table below.	

Interest Rate 

The company does not operate in an industry that requires intense capital and hence the exposure to interest rate risk is reasonably 
moderate. The major component of the interest charge for the company is denominated in variable risk instruments which are 
basically in the form  of loan from banks and FI’s. The details of the borrowings of the company is given in the respective notes on 
borrowings. 			 
The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed and floating interest rates. The interest rate are disclosed in the 
respective notes to the financial statement of the Company. The following table analyse the breakdown of the financial assets and 
liabilities by type of interest rate:
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Amount in ` Lakhs

	 March 31, 2021 	  March 31, 2020 

Financial Assets		

Interest bearing		

- Fixed interest rate		

Other bank balances	  -   	  -   

Others	  -   	  -   

Loans	  -   	  -   

- floating interest rate	  -   	  -

Non interest bearing

Loans	  1,609.17 	  2,061.49 

Others		   -   

Trade receivable	  2,799.45 	  3,860.08 

Cash and cash equivalent	  39.58 	  51.63

Financial Liabilities

Interest bearing

- floating interest rate		

Borrowings	 1,920.67 	  1,785.29

Non interest bearing		

Borrowings	  -   	  4.05 

Trade and other payables	  583.97 	  382.96 

Other financial liabilities	  2,877.20 	  1,622.25 

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest  rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings affected, after  excluding the credit exposure for which interest rate swap has been taken and hence the interest rate 
is fixed. With all other variables are held constant, the Company’s profit  before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate 
borrowings, as follows:

Amount in ` Lakhs

	 March 31, 2021 	  March 31, 2020 

Increase in basis points		

        ‘- Basis points	 50	 50

Effect on profit before tax		

        ‘- INR in Lakhs	  (9.60)	  (8.93)

Decrease in basis points		

       ‘- Basis points	 50	 50

Effect on profit before tax		

        ‘- INR in Lakhs	  9.60 	  8.93 
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company  may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without 
incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of  liquidity to meet its cash and 
collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It 
maintains adequate sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost.

The Company maximum exposure  to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 
is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 20. The Company’s maximum exposure relating to financial guarantees are noted in 
the liquidity table below.

Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars	 On demand	 Less than 3 months	 3 to12 months	 1 to 5 years	 >5 years	 Total
	 INR Lakhs	 INR Lakhs	 INR Lakhs	 INR Lakhs	 INR Lakhs	 INR Lakhs

Year ended 31 March, 2021

Borrowings 	  1,920 					      1,920 

Other financial liabilities			    2,877 			    2,877 

Trade and other payables			    584 			    584 

	  1,920 	  -   	  3,461 	  -   	  -   	  5,381

Year ended 31 March, 2020

Borrowings 	  1,788 					      1,788 

Other financial liabilities			    4,174 			    4,174 

Trade and other payables			    383 			    383 

	  1,788 	  -   	  4,557 	  -   	  -   	  6,345

Notes 38 - Related Party Statement

a) Names of the Related Parties & relationship

Sr. No.	 Name of the Party		  Relationship

1	 Anil Agrawal 		  KMP

2	 Krishna Devi Agrawal 		  KMP

3	 Kridhan Petrochemicals (P) Ltd		  KMP interested concern

4	 K.H.F.Pte Singapore Ltd.		  KMP interested concern

5	 Krish Steel & Trading (P) Ltd. (Formerly known as 		  KMP interested concern
	 Kridhan Infrastructures (P) Ltd) 

6	 Kridhan Infrasolutions (P) Ltd		  Subsidiary Company

7	 KH Foges India (P) Ltd.		  Step down Subsidiary Company

8	 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 		  Subsidiary Company

9	 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd.		  Associate Company

10	 S Vijay Kumar		  Related to Associate Company
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b) 	 Transactions with related party (ies) and balances thereof			 

Sr. No.	Name of the Party	 Relationship	 Nature of 	 Volume of Transaction	 Amount
			   Transaction	 during the period	 outstanding as on 
				    01-04-20 to 31-03-21 (Rs.)	 31-03-21 (Rs.)

1	 Anil Agrawal	 KMP

	 Shares Alloted	 Nil	 5,25,20,320
				    (Nil)	 (5,25,20,320)

			   Amount Received	 14,60,492	 18,65,492
				    (6,00,000)	 (4,05,000)

2	 Krish Steel & Trading (P) Ltd. (Formerly 	 KMP interested concern	 Shares Alloted	 “ Nil	 “2,27,62,000
	 known as Kridhan Infrastructures (P) Ltd)			   (Nil) “	 (2,27,62,000)”

3	 Kridhan Petrochemicals (P) Ltd	 KMP interested concern	 “Allotment of Shares”	 “Nil	 “1,40,00,000
				    (Nil) “	 (1,40,00,000) “

4	 Krishna Devi Agrawal 	 KMP 	 Shares Alloted 	 “Nil 	 “1,00,000
				    (Nil)”	 (1,00,000)”

5	 Kridhan Infrasolutions (P) Ltd	 Subsidiary Company	 Purchases	 21,61,876
				    (1766365)	 “11,15,72,492
6	 Kridhan Infrasolutions (P) Ltd	 Subsidiary Company	 Collections, Loans and 	 “ 3,81,00,323	  (15,21,34,692)“
			   Misc Transaction (net)	 (5,00,45,273)”

7	 Kridhan Infrasolutions (P) Ltd	 Subsidiary Company	 Investment made*	 “Nil	 “92,70,000
				    (Nil) “	 (92,70,000)”

8	 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 	 Subsidiary Company	 Investment made	 “Nil	 “1,11,75,82,562
				    (Nil)”	 (1,11,75,82,562)”

9	 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 	 Subsidiary Company	 Loan Given and interest 	 “Nil	 “15,16,75,183
			   on loan(net/)	 (55,04,832)”	 (15,16,75,183)”

10	 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 	 Subsidiary Company	 Dividend Income	 “Nil	 “25,62,335
				    (Nil)”	 (25,62,335)”

11	 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd.	 Associates Company 	 Investment made in 	 “ Nil	 “ 98,41,70,262
			   Equity #	 (Nil) “	 (98,41,70,262) “

12	 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd.	 Associates Company 	 Working Capital	 “ Nil	 “94,28,648
			   Advance	 (Nil) “	 (94,28,648)”

13	 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd.	 Associates Company 	 Sales/ Receipts 	 “11,37,953	 “2,36,34,133
			   (net)**	 (27,53,243)“	 (2,58,73,674)“

14	 S Vijay Kumar	 KMP of Associate Company	Advance	 “ Nil	 “3,50,00,000
				    (Nil) “	 (3,50,00,000)”

* Includes foreign exchange fluctuation &/or impairment loss

** Includes late payment charges

# Represents the aggregate of amount paid and value of shares alloted to the associate company and its shareholders

Previous years’ figures are given in bracket
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Note 39 : Earnings per Share (EPS)

Amount in ` Lakhs

The Computation of EPS is set out below :

Particulars	 For the year 	 For the year	 For the year
	 ended 31st 	 ended 31st	 ended 31st
	 March 2021	 March 2020	 March 2019
	 Basic & Diluted	 Basic & Diluted	 Basic & Diluted

Earnings

Net Profit for the year (in Rs.)	 (774)	  (1,216)	  (15,259)

Shares

Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 	 947.79	 947.79	 947.79

Equity Shares alloted during the year 		  0	 0.00

Total number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year	 947.79 	  947.79 	  947.79 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 	 947.79 	  947.79 	  947.79
the year - Basic

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during	 947.79 	  947.79 	  970.29
the year - Diluted

Face Value (in Rs.)	 2.00	 2.00	 2.00

Earnings per share Basic (in Rs.)	  (0.82)	  (1.28)	  (16.10)

Earnings per share Diluted (in Rs.)	  (0.82)	  (1.28)	  (15.73)

Note 40 : Movement of Provisions made during the year:

Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars	 Refer Note	 Opening as on 	 Provision made/	 Closing as on
		  1 Apr 2020	  (utilised)	 31 Mar 2021

Provision for Impairment of Investment*	 6	  11,268.53 	  -   	  11,268.53 

Provision for Impairment of Loans and Advances*	 12	  1,942.38 	  390.68 	  2,333.06 

Provision for Guarantees Invoked	 22	  2,555.66 	  -   	  2,555.66 

		   15,766.56 	  390.68 	  16,157.24 

*Provision has been reduced from the respective asset(s) to arrive at the corresponding carrying amount

Note 41 : The company has one subsidiary each in Singapore namely Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd. 
and in India namely Kridhan Infrasolutions Pvt. Ltd. The company has made long term investment in these 
companies.				  
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Note 42 : Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent liabilities not provided for:	                  Amount in ` Lakhs

	 31-Mar-21	 31-Mar-20

Corporate and Bank Guarantees issued to parties	 19,555.13 	  19,555.13

“a) Income tax and VAT liabilities in respect of pending/ ongoing assessments

b) The company has received notices of demand from Office of Income Tax for Rs 65.71 
Lakhs for A.Y. 19-20 and Rs. 2.18 Lakhs for the A.Y 18-19 and for Rs. 636.53 Lakhs for 
AY. 2012-13 and from Office of Sales Tax for Rs. 1447.39 Lakhs for payment of tax and 
other dues for which it has filed/ represented at appropriate forums and are pending at 
these forums. Based on the progress made and as per the best estimates made by the 
company, considering that the company has already applied under Amnesty scheme 
and its application has been approved, based on legal opinion obtained, the company 
will not be required to pay any material amount in respect of the same.“

Note 43 : 

Fixed Assets, Stocks and Cash balance were physically verified by the management. The Certification of the same as given by the 
managment has been relied upon by the auditors. No unadjusted material variations were observed on such verification.

Note 44 : 

The current assets, loans and advances  have the values at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance sheet 
on their realisation in ordinary course of business. Provisions for all known liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount 
reasonably necessary.

Note 45 : 

Balances of Current Assets and Current Liabilities are subject to confirmation and consequential adjustment, if any. However, based 
on the best estimates made by the management and as per the past trends management is of the view that the impact arising there 
from, if any, is not likely to be material.

Note 46 : Segment Reporting

The company operates in only one segment. Hence, there are no other reportable segment as per Ind AS - 108 issued by ICAI.

Not
Ascertainable

Not
Ascertainable
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note 47 : Events after reporting period

No subsequent events that would have a material impact on the financials were observed after the reporting period for which effect 
have not been considered in the financial statements. As informed earlier, the subsidiary Readymade Steels Singapore Pte Ltd. is 
under liquidation process and a material step down subsidiary K.H.Foges Pte Ltd is placed under Judicial Management at Singapore. 
Correspondingly, full provision towards impairment of Investments and other Loans and Advances / receivables from these entities 
have already been made in the books and provision for all anticipated / known liabilities have been created.			 

Note 48 : Gratuity as Defined contribution benefits Scheme

Defined Benefit Plan

Under the said Act, an employee who has completed 5 years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided 
depends upon the strength of service of the employees and the salary at the retirement age.

Following table summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss and amounts 
recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

Amount in ` Lakhs

Statement of profit and loss	 31-Mar-21	 31-Mar-20

Net Employee benefit expenses recognised in the employee cost

Current Service Cost	  0.50 	  1.07 

Interest Cost on Obligation	  -   	  -   

Expected return on plan assets	  -   	  -   

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 	  (1.90)	  (1.14)

Past Service Cost	  -   	  -   

	  (1.40)	  (0.07)

Recognised in earlier year(s)	  0.00 	  0.00 

Recognised in current year	  0.00 	  0.00 

	  0.00 	  0.00 

Changes in Present value of defined benefit obligation	 31-Mar-21	 31-Mar-20

Opening Defined benefit obligation 	  8.82 	 8.27

Current Service Cost	  0.50 	 1.07

Interest Cost	  0.50 	 0.62

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 	  (1.90)	  (1.14)

Benefits Paid

Closing Balance of Defined benefit obligation (Non Current)	  7.92 	  8.82 
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Principle Assumptions		

Rate of Interest	 6.75% Per Annum	

Salary Growth	 5.50% Per Annum	

Withdrawal Rate	 1% at all ages	

Mortality Rates	 “Indian Assured Lives 

	 (2012-14) 

	 Ult. Mortality Rates“

Retirement Age	 58 Years

Note No. 49 : Disclosure towards Impairment

The company has long term investments in its subsidiaries based at Singapore and India. These are long term investments and hence 
generally there is no impairment in respect of these considering the nature and long term visibility of these companies. However, 
considering the present prevailing conditions as further explained at Note No. 30 & 40, the company has provided for an amount 
of Rs. 11,268.53 lacs towards impairment of investments and an amount of Rs. 1942.38 lacs towards impairment of other loans and 
advances and receivables.		

Note No. 50 : Disclosure pursuant to SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015

Amount in ` Lakhs

Particulars	 Outstanding as at 	 Maximum amount
	 the end of the year	 outstanding during the year

Loans to Subsidiaries		

Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd. 	 1516.75	 1516.75

Kridhan Infra Solutions (P) Ltd. 	 1115.72	 1530.70

Loans to Associates

Vijay Nirman Construction (P) Ltd. 	 94.29	 94.29

Loan to entities in the nature of loan to firms /	 0	 0
companies in which directors are interested

The company has not advanced any money to its employees for the purpose of investment in the securities of the company.

Note 51 : The Financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated June 30, 2021.

Note 52 : Previous years’ figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current classification.

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Independent Director
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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To

The Members of Kridhan Infra Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

1.	 Opinion

	 We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of Kridhan Infra Limited (“the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and 
associates, which comprise the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated  financial 
statements”).

	 It may be noted that due to COVID-19 pandemic 
there was lockdown and hence restriction on physical 
movements, social distancing, work timings, work from 
home, etc. Besides that the place of business was in 
Red Zone classification of lockdown. Hence, we were 
unable to visit the place of business frequently and had 
to rely on information digitally provided to conduct audit 
procedures. Due to this, opinion expressed in this report 
is mainly based on the information, explanation, facts, 
supporting and other requirements made available to us 
through electronic medium by the management.

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated   financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended 
(‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of 
the Group and its associates as at 31st March 21 and its 
consolidated loss (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

2.	 Emphasis of Matter

	 We draw attention to 

a)	 Note No. 16 of the consolidated financial 
statements, wherein the management has 
disclosed that the Singapore subsidiary of the 
company is under the process of liquidation and 
its material step-down subsidiary at Singapore is 
under Judicial Management.  Hence, due to non-
availability of the figures for the year ended 31st 
March 2021, the same have not been considered 
for the purpose of consolidated financial results.

b)	 Note No. 31 of the consolidated financial 
statements states that the company has written of 
/ provided for certain old receivables being not 
recoverable, provision for Impairment & loans to 
subsidiaries as exceptional items. 

	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is 
not modified in respect of the above matter.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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3.	 Key Audit Matters 

	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of these 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report:

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the matter

Impairment of investments in subsidiary companies

The company has made investments in equity and other instruments 
issued by its subsidiary company which carry on business in 
different geographical areas and are thus exposed to risks that 
are significantly different from those to which the company is 
exposed. In terms of the requirement of Ind AS 36 – Impairment 
of Assets, the company is required to evaluate the impairment 
loss, if any, on these investments which is done by carrying out an 
impairment testing of these investments. Such impairment testing 
is done by comparing the cost of such investments vis-à-vis the 
value in use that these investee subsidiary companies generate 
/ potentially generate over the future envisaged life span. The 
determination of the recoverable amount from the subsidiary 
is a technical matter and involves significant judgements w.r.t. 
the amount that may be recovered and hence the evaluation 
of impairment of investments in subsidiary companies has been 
considered as a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures includes the following:

a)	 Review of the past earnings were carried out for all the 
subsidiaries. No future earnings were anticipated for 
Singapore Subsidiary as it is in the process of liquidation 
and its step down is under Judicial Management.    Earnings 
of the future and the likely costs to work out the likely net 
earnings available to the company have been calculated for 
Indian Subsidiary Kridhan Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd.;

b)	 Reviewed the risks and contingency to which these 
subsidiaries are exposed to in the prevalent scenario for 
Indian Subsidiary;

c)	 Discussed / evaluated the potential changes w.r.t. the cash 
flows anticipated in the future years w.r.t. Indian Subsidiary;

d)	 Discussed the realisable value of the net assets of the 
subsidiaries to evaluate the impairment from a distress sale 
point of view w.r.t. Indian Subsidiary. 

Litigation and Claims

Litigation and claims are pending with multiple tax and regulatory 
authorities and there are claims from vendors/suppliers and 
employees which have not been acknowledged as debt by the 
company.

In the normal course of business, financial exposures may arise 
from pending legal/regulatory proceedings and from above 
referred claims not acknowledged as debt by the company. 
Whether a claim needs to be recognized as liability, disclosed 
as contingent liability or considered as remote in the standalone 
financial statements is dependent on a number of significant 
assumptions and judgments. The amounts involved are potentially 
significant and determining the amount, if any, to be recognized 
or disclosed in the financial statements, is inherently subjective.

We have considered Litigations and claims as Key Audit Matter 
as it requires significant management judgment, including 
accounting estimates that involves high estimation uncertainty.

Our audit procedures included the following:

a)	 Understood Management’s process and control for 
determining tax litigations and other litigations and claims 
and its appropriate;

b)	 Tested key controls surrounding such litigations. Discussed 
pending matters with the Company’s legal department 
Assessed management’s conclusions through understanding 
precedents set in similar cases;

c)	 We have assessed the appropriateness of presentation of 
the most significant contingent liabilities in the standalone 
financial statements.
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4.	 Other Matters

	 The consolidated financial statements also include the 
Group’s share of loss (net) of Rs. 1409.98 Lakhs for 
the period ended 31st March, 2021, as considered 
in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of 
its associate, whose financial statements / financial 
information have not been audited by us. These financial 
statements / financial information of the associate 
are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the 
Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of the and associate, 
and our report in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial 
statements / financial information. Accordingly, the same 
are subject to changes, if any, arising on audit of the 
same.

	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is 
not modified in respect of above matters.

5.	 Information Other than the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon

	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in 
the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Business 
Responsibility Report and Report on Corporate 
Governance but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
The above-referred information is expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this audit report.

	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information, identified above when it becomes available 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 

is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.

	 When we read the information, if we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required 
to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by 
the circumstances & the applicable laws and regulations.

6.	 Responsibilities of Management and Those 
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group and its associates 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and 
its associates and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; the selection and application of 
appropriate  accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid. 

	 In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group and its associates are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the Group and its associates to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
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intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

	 The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and its associates are also 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process 
of the Group and its associates.

7.	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Group and its associates incorporated in India 
have adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the ability of the Group and its associates to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditors’ report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group and its associates 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group and its associates 
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of such entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements 
of which we are the independent auditors. For the 
other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

	 We communicate with those charged with governance of 
the Holding company regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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	 We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

8.	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

i.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, 
based on our audit and on the consideration of 
report of other auditors on separate financial 
statements and on the other financial information 
of subsidiaries and associates, as noted in ‘Other 
Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent 
applicable, that:

a.	 we have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements.

b.	 in our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the 
other auditors.

c.	 the consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements.

d.	 in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

e.	 in respect of the company on the basis of written 
representations received from the Directors as on 
31st March 2021 and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, we report that none of the 
directors are disqualified as on 31st  March 2021 
from being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f.	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statement of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries 
and associates incorporated in India and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in “Annexure I”.

h.	 with respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 the consolidated financial statements have disclosed the 
impact of the pending litigations on its financial position 
of the Group and its associates. –Refer Note 42 to the 
consolidated financial statements;

ii.	 according to information and explanations given to us, 
the Group and its associates have made provision for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, in respect of long- term 
contract including derivatives contracts; and

iii.	 there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required 
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Group, its associates and joint ventures.

For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Regn. No. 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No.036309 
Mumbai, Date: 30th June, 2021 
UDIN : 21036309AAAABW8208
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of Kridhan Infra Limited (herein after referred to as 
“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, as 
of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its 
subsidiaries and associates which are companies incorporated 
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company, 
its subsidiaries and associates which are companies incorporated 
in India, considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company, its subsidiaries and associates which are companies 
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of the 
reports referred to in the “Other Matters” paragraph below, 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated 
in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

Annexure - 1 to Independent Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 9 (i) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)
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and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company  and associate have in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements were operating 
effectively as at 31st  March 2021, based on the internal 
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India.  

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in so far as 
it relates to a subsidiary which is a company incorporated in 
India, is based on the corresponding standalone reports of the 
auditors, as applicable, of such companies incorporated in India. 
In respect to the associate, which is a company incorporated in 
India, we are unable to comment on the adequacy or otherwise 
of such controls since the audited financials in respect of the 
same are not available due to the audit not being completed.

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements does not include 
in respect of associate, which is a company incorporated in 
India whose audit reports are not available. In our opinion and 
according to information and explanations given to us by the 
Management, these financial information are not material to the 
Group.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For B.R. Kotecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Regn. No. 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha 
Proprietor 
Membership No.036309 
Mumbai, Date: 30th June, 2021 
UDIN : 21036309AAAABW8208
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 
Particulars Note No. As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

 As per Ind AS  As per Ind AS 
ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
    a) Property Plant and Equipment 5  2,597.05  2,698.13 
    b) Other Intangible Asset 5  -    -   
        Goodwill  22.70  22.70 
   c) Financial Assets

 (i) Investments 6  7,733.77  9,146.80 
(ii) Other Financial Assets 7  53.13  54.63 

d) Other Non Current Assets 7  -   
Total Non Current Assets  10,406.65  11,922.26 
2. Current Assets

a) Inventories 8  107.31  95.79 
b) Investments 9  6.00  5.57 
c) Financial Assets

(i)   Trade Receivables 10  3,727.31  5,490.86 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalent 11  59.39  73.28 
(iii)Other Bank Balances  -   
(iii)Loans & Advances 12  1,872.04  2,486.70 
(iv)Other Financial Assets 13  -    -   

d) Other current assets 14  332.10  383.85 
Total Current Assets  6,103.15  8,536.05 
Total  16,509.81  20,458.31 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
Equity Share Capital 15  1,895.58  1,895.58 
Other Equity 16  8,207.42  10,436.59 
Share and Warrant Application Money  -   
Minority Interest  -   
Total Equity  10,103.00  12,332.17 
2. Liabilities
A. Non-Current Liabilities

a)  Financial Liabilities
(i)Borrowings 17  7.15  10.73 
(ii) Other Non current Liabilities 18  46.82  2,562.50 

b) Deferred Tax liability 19  60.79  68.48 
c) Provisions 20  1.91  5.36 

Total Non Current Liabilities  116.67  2,647.08 
B. Current Liabilities

a)  Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 21  1,924.98  1,788.75 
(ii)  Trade Payables 22  895.81  1,499.03 
(iii) Others 23  3,150.09  1,639.88 

b) Short Term Provisions 24  319.25  551.40 
Total Current Liabilities  6,290.14  5,479.06 
Total  16,509.81  20,458.31 

Amount in ` Lakhs

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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Particulars Note No. As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
 As per Ind AS  As per Ind AS 

Income 
Revenue from operations 25  2,743.48  1,902.95 
Other income 26  157.39  257.84 
Total Income  2,900.87  2,160.79 

Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 27  2,624.43  1,449.31 
Consumables and other direct costs 27  24.90  35.65 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods  (11.52)  324.15 

Employee benefits expense 28  27.97  67.68 
Finance costs 29  202.06  216.11 

Depreciation and amortisation expense  97.67  93.15 

Other expenses 30  76.21  110.40 
Total expenses 3,040.74  2,296.44 

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax  (139.87)  (135.65)

Exceptional items 31  668.66  835.33 

Profit / (Loss) before tax  (808.53)  (970.99)

Tax expense:

Current tax  -   

Tax adjustments relating to previous year  0.23  (3.63)
Deferred tax charge/ (credit)  8.60  9.38 
MAT Credit Utilised
Total Tax Expenses  8.83  5.75 

Profit (Loss) for the year  (817.36)  (976.74)

Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -   

Remeasurements - On post employment benefit plan - gratuity  -   

   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -   

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -   

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -   

Total Income for the year  (817.36)   (976.74)

Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associate(s)  (1,409.98)  (1,525.51)
Total Income for the year (2,227.34)  (2,502.25)
Attributable to Non Controlling Interest  -   

Attributable to Share holders of the company  (2,227.34)   (2,502.25)

Earnings per equity share: [Nominal Value per share: Rs.2 (2020: Rs.2)] 40

-Basic (in Rs.)  (2.35)  (2.64)

-Diluted (in Rs.)  (2.35)  (2.64)
-Number of shares considered for EPS - Basic  947.79  947.79 
-Number of shares considered for EPS - Diluted  947.79  947.79 
Notes on Accounts and Policies forming an integral part of the financial statements 1-51

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 Amount in ` Lakhs

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

 As per Ind AS  As per Ind AS 

Cash flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit before tax and adjustment of extraordinary items net of prior year adjustment  (809.43)  -969.94 

Adjustments for :

 Depreciation  97.67  93.15 

Exchange Loss / (Gain) - Non cash item  -    0.69 

Interest and Dividend received  (154.93)  -254.18 

Interest & Finance charges  202.07  216.06 

Gain/Loss on sale of Fixed Asset / Investments  0.17  (2.24)

Exceptional Items  668.66  835.33 

Operating Profit before working capital changes  4.21  (81.13)

Working Capital Changes / Adjustments for 

Inventories  (11.52)  324.15 

Receivables  1,485.33  -270.74 

Loans & Advances and Other Assets  275.00  101.59 

Trade Payables  and Other Current Liabilities including Provisions  (1,860.05)  -236.01 

Cash generated / used from operations  (111.24)  (81.01)

Direct Taxes  -    -   

Net cash from (used in) Operating Activities (A)  (107.03)  (162.14)

Cash flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets  6.33  (435.34)

Sale of Fixed Assets  3.82  12.73 

Interest and Dividend Received  154.93  184.51 

Non-current assets and liabilities  1.51  282.47 

Net Cash from (used in) Investing Activities (B)  166.59  44.37 

Cash flow From Financing Activities:

Repayment/Acceptance of Borrowings Non-Current  128.61  14.25 

Interest and finance charges  (202.07)  216.06 

Net cash from Financing Activities (C )  (73.46)  230.31 

Total Cash Inflow (A) + (B) + (C )  (13.90)  112.56 

Net Increase/Decrease in Cash or Cash Equivalent  (13.90)  112.56 

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year  73.28  185.84 

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year  59.38  73.28 

This cash flow has been prepared in indirect method as per IndAS 7 issued by ICAI 
In terms of our report of even date

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Amount in ` Lakhs
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Statement of Changes in Equity

In terms of our report of even date

For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

i) Equity Share Capital

ii) Other Equity

Particulars Amount

Closing as at 31 March 2020  1,895.58 

Movement during FY 2020-21  -   

Closing as at 31 March 2021  1,895.58 

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus

Securities  
Premium

Capital 
reserve

Retained  
earnings

Total

Balance as at March 31, 2020  25,891.76  606.25  (16,061.42)  10,436.59 
Additions during the year:  -    -   

Profit for the year  -    (2,229.17)  (2,229.17)

Utilisation / Adjustments during the year  -    -   

Payment of dividends  -    -    -   

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2021  25,891.76  606.25  (18,290.59)  8,207.42 
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1	 Corporate Information

	 Kridhan Infra Limited (‘Kridhan’ or ‘the Company’) is a 
public limited company domiciled and incorporated in 
India having its registered office at 203, Joshi Chambers, 
Ahmedabad Street, Carnac Bunder, Masjid. Mumbai- 
400 009. The Consolidated Financial Statements 
comprise of financial statements of Kridhan Infra 
Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘the Holding Company’) 
and its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group”) for the 
year ended March 31, 2021. The Company is a public 
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. 
Its share are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in 
India viz BSE and NSE.

2.	 Application of new Indian Accounting Standards

2.1	 All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and notified 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are 
authorized have been considered in preparation of 
these Financial Statements.

2.2	 Standards issued but not yet effective

	 The MCA has notified the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards/ Ind AS) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 on March 30, 2019, whereby Ind 
AS-116 relating to “Leases” has been made 
applicable from financial year 2019-20 (i.e. April 
1, 2019 onwards)

	 Ind AS 116 Leases

	 The Standard supersedes the existing Ind AS 17 
“Leases”. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee 
accounting model and requires a lessee to 
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a 
term of more than 12 months unless the underlying 
asset is of low value and sets out the principles for 
the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of leases. The Company is evaluating 
the requirements of the same and its effect on the 
Financial Statements is not likely to be material.

	 Amendment to Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments

	 The amendment to Ind AS 109 requires 
accounting for prepayment features with negative 
compensation in case of debt instruments. As 
the Company does not have any such financial 
instruments which meet the conditions, the 
amendment has no effect on the financial 
statements.

	 Amendment to Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

	 The amendment to Ind AS 111 prescribes 
accounting in case of obtaining joint control of 
an operation wherein there was no joint control 
earlier. As the Company does not have any 
contracts of Joint arrangement, the amendment 
has no effect on the financial statements of the 
Company.  

	 Amendment to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

	 The amendment to Ind AS 12 requires recognition 
of income tax consequences of dividends when 
an entity recognises a liability to pay a dividend 
in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or 
equity according to where the entity originally 
recognised those past transactions or events. 
Further amendment to Appendix C to Ind AS 12 
provides the requirements of the amendment are 
to be applied while performing the determination 
of taxable profit (or Tax Loss), tax bases, unused 
tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates, when 
there is uncertainty over income tax treatment of 
an item by tax authorities.

	 The Company is evaluating the requirements of the 
same and its effect on the Financial Statements. 
However, the impact is not likely to be material.

	 Amendment to Ind AS 19 Employee 
Benefits

	 The amendment to Ind AS 19 prescribes 
accounting for plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement occurring in-between the reporting 
periods in case of long-term employee benefit 
plans. The Company does not have any 
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurring in-
between the reporting period in case of long-term 
employee benefit plans, the amendment has no 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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effect on the financial statements of the Company. 
The Company will apply the requirements when 
there is any amendment, curtailment or settlement 
of any long term employee benefit plan. 

	 Amendment to Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs

	 The amendment to Ind AS 23 prescribes the 
accounting treatment for specific borrowings post 
capitalization of corresponding qualifying asset.

	 As the Company does not have any borrowings 
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, 
the amendment has no effect on the financial 
statements of the Company.

2.3	 Basis of Preparation

	 The financial statements of the Group have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended thereafter.

	 For all periods up to and including the year 
ended March 31, 2017, the Group has prepared 
its financial statements in accordance with 
accounting standards notified under section 133 
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’). 
These financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2021 are prepared in accordance with 
Ind AS.

	 The consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except 
for certain financial assets and liabilities (refer 
accounting policy regarding financial instruments) 
which have been measured at fair value. The 
consolidated financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupee (‘INR’) which is also the Group’s 
functional currency and all values are rounded 
to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise 
indicated.

3.	 Significant accounting policies

3.1	 Statement of compliance

	 In accordance with the notification dated 16th 
February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian 
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect 
from April 1, 2017.

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Ind AS notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended). 

	 Previous period figures in the Financial Statements 
have been restated in compliance to Ind AS. 

3.2	 Basis of consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements comprise 
the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021. Control is 
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, 
to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns 
through its power over the investee. Subsidiaries are 
entities controlled by the Group. Consolidation of a 
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control 
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group 
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed off during the year are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date the 
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 
to control the subsidiary.

	 Consolidated financial statements are prepared 
using uniform accounting policies for like transactions 
and other events in similar circumstances.

	 The financial statements of each of the subsidiaries 
used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn 
up to same reporting date as that of the Company, 
i.e., year ended on 31 March except in respect 
of Singapore subsidiary Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte Ltd. which is under liquidation 
process.  For the said reason the financials of the 
Singapore Subsidiary have not been consolidated 
with that of the holding company due to non-
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availability of the figures of the same for the year 
ended 31st March 2021. 

3.2.1	Process for consolidation

	 Consolidation procedure:

i.	 Combine like items of assets, liabilities, 
equity, income, expenses and cash flows of 
the parent with those of its subsidiary(ies). 
For this purpose, income and expenses 
of the subsidiary(ies) are based on the 
amounts of the assets and liabilities 
recognised in the consolidated financial 
statements at the acquisition date. The 
exchange rate used for conversion in case 
of items of profit and loss is the average 
rate for the year and for the balance sheet 
items is the closing rate for the year / 
period.

ii.	 Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of 
the parent’s investment in each subsidiary 
and the parent’s portion of equity of each 
subsidiary. Business combinations policy 
explains how to account for any related 
goodwill.

iii.	 Eliminate in full intragroup assets and 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and 
cash flows relating to transactions between 
entities of the group (profits or losses 
resulting from intragroup transactions that 
are recognised in assets, such as inventory 
and fixed assets, are eliminated in full, 
except as stated. 

iv.	 Intragroup losses may indicate an 
impairment that requires recognition in 
the consolidated financial statements. Ind 
AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary 
differences that arise from the elimination 
of profits and losses resulting from 
intragroup transactions.

v.	 Non-controlling interests, if any, in the 
net assets of consolidated subsidiaries 
consists of :

a)	 The amount of equity attributed to 
non-controlling interests at the date 
on which investment in a subsidiary 

relationship came into existence;

b)	 The non-controlling interest share 
of movement in equity since the 
date parent subsidiary relationship 
came into existence;

c)	 Non-controlling interest share of 
net profit/(loss) of consolidated 
subsidiaries for the year is 
identified and adjusted against the 
profit after tax of the Group.

vi.	 The following components have been 
considered for the purpose of the 
consolidated financial statements :

Direct Subsidiaries:

-	 Kridhan Infrasolutions Pvt. Ltd. (100% 
holding as on 31 Mar 21 & 31 Mar 20) 

vii.	 The following components have 
been ignored for the purpose of the 
consolidated financial statements :

Direct Subsidiaries:

-	 Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd. 
(100% holding as on 31 Mar 21) as the 
same is under liquidation process.

	 Step Down Subsidiaries (being subsidiaries of Readymade 
Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd.)

3.2.2	Business combinations and goodwill & 
Impairment thereof 

	 The Group has exercised exemption and elected not 
to apply Ind AS accounting for business combinations 
retrospectively.

	 The excess of cost to the group of its investments in 
subsidiary companies over its share of the equity of the 
subsidiary companies at the dates on which the investments 
in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognised as 
‘Goodwill’ being an asset in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. This Goodwill is tested for impairment at the 
close of each financial year. Alternatively, where the share 
of equity in the subsidiary companies as on the date of 
investment is in excess of cost of investment of the group, 
it is recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the 
head ‘Reserves and Surplus’, in the consolidated financial 
statements.
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	 Goodwill is accordingly de-recognised when there are 
indications of impairment of the investments or the group 
cedes control of the subsidiary by disposal, sale or 
otherwise. 

	 Fair value measurement

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date 
under current market conditions. 

	 The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value into one of three levels depending on the 
ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement 
which are described as follows:

(a)	 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

(b)	 Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either 
directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices 
included within level 1 for the asset or liability. 

(c)	 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability reflecting significant modifications 
to observable related market data or Company’s 
assumptions about pricing by market participants.

3.3	 Investments in associates 

	 The Company records the investments in 
subsidiaries and associates at cost less impairment 
loss, if any. 

	 On disposal of investment in subsidiary and 
associate, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amounts (including 
corresponding value of dilution in deemed 
investment) are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

	 Interest free loans provided to subsidiary are 
recognized at amount paid on the date of 
disbursement. 

3.4	 Property, Plant and Equipment 

	 The Group had elected to continue with the 
carrying value of all of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 
(transition date) measured as per the Previous 
GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed 
cost as of the transition date except in respect of 

its Land which has been measured at Fair Value as 
on the transition date.

	 Freehold land is not depreciated.

	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) used for 
business purposes are carried at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and recognised 
impairment loss. The cost of an asset comprises 
its purchase price or its construction cost (net 
of applicable tax credits), any cost directly 
attributable to bring the asset into the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by the 
Management. It includes professional fees and, 
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised 
in accordance with the Company’s accounting 
policy. Such properties are classified to the 
appropriate categories of PPE when completed 
and ready for intended use. Parts of an item of 
PPE having different useful lives and significant 
value and subsequent expenditure on Property, 
Plant and Equipment arising on account of capital 
improvement or other factors are accounted for as 
separate components. 

	 Depreciation of PPE commences when the assets 
are ready for their intended use.

	 Depreciation is provided over the useful life of PPE 
as stated in the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013 or based on technical assessment by the 
Company. 

	 The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed periodically 
and if necessary, changes in estimates are 
accounted for prospectively.

	 Depreciation on additions / deletions to PPE 
during the year is provided for on a pro-rata basis 
with reference to the date of additions/deletions 
except low value items which are fully depreciated 
at the time of addition.

	 An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement 
of an item of PPE is determined as the difference 
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying 
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amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.	

3.5	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately

	 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are 
acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on 
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 
lives not exceeding five years from the date of 
capitalisation. The estimated useful life is reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period and the effect 
of any changes in estimate being accounted for 
prospectively.

	 Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal, or 
when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising 
from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
determined as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset, and  recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.6	 Impairment of tangible and intangible 
assets

	 The Group reviews the carrying amount of its 
tangible and intangible assets at the end of each 
reporting period to determine whether there is 
any indication that those assets have suffered an 
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss (if any). 

	 An assessment is made at the end of each 
reporting period to see if there are any indications 
that impairment losses recognized earlier may 
no longer exist or may have come down. The 
impairment loss is reversed, if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the previous 
impairment loss was recognized. If it is so, the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to 
the lower of its recoverable amount and the 
carrying amount that have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

recognized for the asset in prior years. After a 
reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted 
in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised 
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
Reversals of Impairment loss are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7	 Inventories comprising of saleable stock 
are valued at cost or Net Realisable Value, 
whichever is lower. 

	 Consumable stock are valued at Cost.

3.8	 Revenue recognition

(i)	 Revenue is recognised when the property 
in the goods is transferred in favor of the 
customer, which normally coincides with 
the date of physical delivery. In case of 
transit sales where goods are transferred 
by transfer of the documents of title, 
revenue is recognised on the transfer of 
the document of title.

	 Revenue from services is recognized 
when the outcome of services can be 
estimated reliably and it is probable that 
the economic benefits associated with 
rendering of services will flow to the 
Company, and the amount of revenue can 
be measured reliably.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable 
and represents amounts receivable for 
goods and services provided in the normal 
course of business, net of discounts, 
service tax and GST etc. Any retrospective 
revision in prices is accounted for in the 
year of such revision.

(ii)	 Interest on Fixed Deposits is recognised on 
accrual basis.

(iii)	 Income from sale of scrap is accounted on 
cash basis.

(iv)	 Dividend income from investments is 
recognised when the shareholder’s right to 
receive payment is established.
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3.9	 Foreign Exchange Transactions

	 The functional currency of the Group is Indian 
Rupees which represents the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which it 
operates.

	 Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s 
functional currency (foreign currencies) are 
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each 
reporting period, monetary items denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated using mean 
exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the 
reporting period. 

	 Exchange differences on monetary items are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the period in which they arise.

3.10	 Borrowing Cost 

	 Interest/Finance Cost on loans specifically 
borrowed for and expansion of projects, upto 
the point when the project is ready for start of 
commercial production is charged to the capital 
cost of the projects concerned. 

	 All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

3.11	 Employee Benefits

	 Employee benefits include salaries, wages, 
provident fund, gratuity, and other terminal 
benefits.

	 All short term employee benefits are recognized 
at their undiscounted amount in the accounting 
period in which they are incurred.

	 Defined contribution plans

	 Employee Benefit under defined contribution 
plans comprising provident fund is recognized 
based on the undiscounted amount of obligations 
of the Group to contribute to the plan. The same is 
paid to the EPFO and charged to the statement of 
profit and loss.

	 Defined benefit plans

	 Defined retirement benefit plans comprising 
of gratuity and other terminal benefits, are 
recognized based on the present value of defined 
benefit obligation which is computed using the 

projected unit credit method, with actuarial 
valuations being carried out at the end of each 
annual reporting period. These are accounted 
either as current employee cost or included in cost 
of assets as permitted.

	 The retirement benefit obligation recognised in 
the Financial Statements represents the actual 
deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit 
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation 
is limited to the present value of any economic 
benefits available in the form of reductions in 
future contributions to the plans.

3.12	 Income Taxes

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of the 
current tax and deferred tax.

	 Current tax

	 The tax currently payable is based on taxable 
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit 
before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss because of items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deductible in other years 
and items that are never taxable or deductible. 
The Company’s current tax is calculated using 
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised. 

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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	 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. 

	 The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and 
assets reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Group 
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities. 

3.13	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has 
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that the group 
will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation.

	 The amount recognised as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the 
reporting period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
When a provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows (when the effect of the time value of money 
is material).

	 Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial 
Statements by way of notes to accounts when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial 
Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefit is remote.

3.14	 Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
recognised when Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. 

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets and financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or 
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets 
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

3.15	 Equity instruments

	 Equity instruments issued by the Group are 
recorded at the proceeds received.

3.16	 Financial assets

(i)	 Cash and cash equivalents 

	 The Group considers all highly liquid 
financial instruments, which are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash 
that are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value and having original 
maturities of three months or less from the 
date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of 
balances with banks which are unrestricted 
for withdrawal and usage.

(ii)	 Financial assets at amortised cost 

	 Financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method if these financial 
assets are held within a business whose 
objective is to hold these assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

(iii)	 Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 

	 Financial assets are measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income if 
these financial assets are held within a 



103

Kridhan Infra Limited

business whose objective is achieved by 
both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding. 

	 The Group has made an irrevocable 
election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair 
value of equity investments not held for 
trading. 

(iv)	 Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 

	 Financial assets are measured at fair value 
through profit or loss unless it is measured 
at amortised cost or at fair value through 
other comprehensive income on initial 
recognition.

(v)	 Impairment of financial assets 

	 The Group assesses at each balance 
sheet date whether a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. Ind 
AS 109 requires expected credit losses to 
be measured through a loss allowance. 
The Group recognises lifetime expected 
losses for trade receivables that do not 
constitute a financing transaction. For all 
other financial assets, expected credit 
losses are measured at an amount equal 
to 12 month expected credit losses or at an 
amount equal to lifetime expected losses, 
if the credit risk on the financial asset 
has increased significantly since initial 
recognition.

(vi)	 Derecognition of financial assets

	 The Group derecognises a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or when it transfers 
the financial asset and substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 
to another party. 

	 On derecognition of a financial asset in 
its entirety (except for equity instruments 

designated as FVTOCI), the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the sum of the consideration received and 
receivable is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

3.17	 Financial liabilities

a)	 Financial liabilities 

	 Financial liabilities are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

b)	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 The Group derecognises financial liabilities 
when, and only when, the Company’s 
obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
have expired. The difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid 
and payable is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

3.18	 Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing 
the net profit after tax by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed 
by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that 
could have been issued upon conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

3.19	 Cash Flow Statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating 
cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into 
operating, investing and financing activities.

3.20	 Segment reporting

	 Operating segments are identified and reported 
taking into account the different risks and returns, 
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the organization structure and the internal 
reporting systems.

3.21	 Current versus non-current classification

	 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the 
balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when 
it is:

-	 Expected to be realized or intended to 
be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle

-	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

-	 Expected to be realised within twelve 
months after the reporting period, or

-	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted 
from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

-	 It is expected to be settled in normal 
operating cycle

-	 It is held primarily for the purpose of 
trading

-	 It is due to be settled within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

-	 There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period

	 The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as 
non-current assets and liabilities.

	 The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Group has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle.

4.	 Critical Accounting Judgments, Assumptions and 
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

	 Inherent in the application of many of the accounting 

policies used in preparing the Financial Statements is 
the need for Management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses. Actual outcomes could differ from the estimates 
and assumptions used. 

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 
revised and future periods are affected.

	 Key source of judgments, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainty in the preparation of the Financial Statements 
which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year, are in respect of impairment, useful lives of Property, 
Plant and Equipment, employee benefit obligations, 
impairment, provision for income tax, measurement of 
deferred tax assets and contingent assets and liabilities.

4.1	 Critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies

	 The following are the critical judgements, apart 
from those involving estimations (Note 4.2), that 
the Management have made in the process of 
applying the Company’s accounting policies and 
that have the significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the Financial Statements.

(a)	 Determination of functional 
currency

	 Currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Group operates 
(“the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee 
(`) in which the Group primarily generates 
and expends cash. Accordingly, the 
Management has assessed its functional 
currency to be Indian Rupee (`).

(b)	 Classification of investment 

	 Judgement is required in assessing the 
level of control obtained in a transaction 
to acquire an interest in another 
entity; depending upon the facts and 
circumstances in each case, the Group may 
obtain control, joint control or significant 
influence over the entity or arrangement. 
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Transactions which give the Group control 
of a business are business combinations. 
If the Group obtains joint control of an 
arrangement, judgement is also required 
to assess whether the arrangement is 
a joint operation or a joint venture. If 
the Group has neither control nor joint 
control, it may be in a position to exercise 
significant influence over the entity, which 
is then classified as an associate.

	

4.2	 Assumptions and key sources of estimation 
uncertainty

	 Information about estimates and assumptions that 
have the significant effect on recognition and 
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses is provided below. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

(a)	 Impairment of assets

	 Determination as to whether, and by 
how much, asset is impaired involves 

Management estimates on uncertain 
matters such as future prices, the effects of 
inflation on operating expenses, discount 
rate etc. 

(b)	 Litigations

	 From time to time, the Group is subject 
to legal proceedings and the ultimate 
outcome of each being always subject to 
many uncertainties inherent in litigation. 
A provision for litigation is made when it 
is considered probable that a payment 
will be made and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. Significant 
judgment is made when evaluating, 
among other factors, the probability of 
unfavourable outcome and the liability 
to make a reasonable estimate of the 
amount of potential loss. Provision for 
litigations are reviewed at the end of each 
accounting period and revisions made for 
the changes in facts and circumstances.
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. Particulars
 As at 31 March 

2021 
 As at 31 March 

2020 

Note 6  Investments 

 Investments in Equity Instruments of subsidiaries: 

 Cost / Deemed Cost   -   

 Investments in Equity Instruments of Associates 

 Cost / Deemed Cost   9,841.70  9,841.70 

 Additions during the year  -   

 Share of profit accrued (Net) (2,457.93)  (1,048)

 Disposal and / or Impairment   -   

 Balance as at the year end  7,383.77  8,793.75 

 Other Investment(s) 

 In Financial Assets  350.00  353.05 

 In Property (ies)  -   

Closing Balance  7,733.77  9,146.80 

(Refer Note No. 32 for details of associate(s))

Note 7 Investments 
 As at 31 March 

2021 
 As at 31 March 

2020 

Security Deposit  13.76  16.08 

Retention Deposit  39.37  38.55 

 53.13  54.63 

Note 8 Current assets - 

Inventories 

Stock in Trade - Raw Materials, Process Stocks and Finished Goods   107.31  95.79 

(As verified and valued by the management) 

(Valued at Cost or market value whichever is lower) 

 107.31  95.79 

Note 9 Current Investmemts

Unquoted, at fair value

In Debt Scheme of Mutual Funds   6.00  5.57 

 6.00  5.57 

Details of Investments:

Particulars 

Unquoted Investments

Investments in Mutual funds (Fair value through profit or loss)

-Union Liquid Fund Growth 

 No. of Units   50,000  50,000 

 Cost Rs. In Lacs  5.00  5.00 
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Note No. Particulars
 As at 31 

March 2021 
 As at 31 

March 2020 

Note 10  Trade Receivables 

Current :  -   

 Unsecured, Considered good:  3,727.31  5,702.12 

 Others  -   

 Less: Impairment for doubtful receivable -  (211.26)

 3,727.31 5,490.86 

10.1: The average credit period on sales is 30-60 days. No interest is charged during this credit period. Thereafter, interest on delayed payments 
is charged at SBI Base rate plus 4%-6% per annum compounded each quarter on the outstanding balance.

10.2: There is no single party concentration of the receivables.

10.3: Further, based on assessemtnt made by the management, depending on the past history, management does not expect any material loss on 
realisation of these receivables.

Note 11 Cash and Bank Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks:

In current account  29.11  8.29 

In deposit account  10.31  39.99 

Debit balance in Cash Credit Account -

Cash on hand  19.97  25.01 

 59.39  73.28 

Deposits maintained by the group with banks comprise time deposit, which can be withdrawn by the group at any time.

Note 12 Loans & Advances

To Related Parties: 

Short Term Loan given to subsidiaries  1,516.75  1,516.75 

- Interest Free  -   

Short Term Loan given to Associates and its Director  357.16  444.29 

Dividend from Subsidiaries  25.62  25.62 

 1,899.53  1,986.66 

Less : Provision for Impairment of receivables*  1,542.37  1,542.37 

Carrying amount   357.16  444.29 

To Others: 

Inter Corporate Deposits given  1,208.99  1,133.51 

Less : Provision for Doubtful debts of receivables  390.68 

 818.31 

Loans to Other concerns  696.57  848.06 

Retention Money  -    48.39 

Staff Advances  -    4.89 

Others including Deposits  -    7.56 

 1,872.04  2,486.70 

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note No. Particulars
 As at 31 

March 2021 
 As at 31 

March 2020 

Note 13 Other Financial Assets 

Others  -   

Note 14 Other current assets

 Advances to Suppliers  180.73  383.85 

 Advance Income Tax, TDS etc  17.63  -   

 Retention  48.39  -   

 Others  85.35  -   

 332.10  383.85 

Note 15 Equity Share Capital

 Authorised Share Capital 

 10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each  2,000.00  2,000.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up share capital 

 As at the beginning of the year  1,895.58  1,895.58 

 Alloted during the year  -   

 Closing Equity share capital  1,895.58  1,895.58 

15.1: Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period

 Balance at the beginning of the year  9,47,79,205  9,47,79,205 

  Changes during the year   -    -   

 Balance at the end of the year  9,47,79,205  9,47,79,205 

 15.2: Terms / rights attached to equity shares 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders. 

15.3: Shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

Name of the shareholder  No. of shares  No. of shares 

Anil Agarwal  26260160 (27.71%)  26260160 (27.71%) 

Kridhan Infrastructures (P) Ltd  11381000(12.01%)  11381000(12.01%) 

Kridhan Petrochemicals (P) Ltd  7000000(7.39%)  7000000(7.39%) 

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note No. Particulars
 As at 31 

March 2021 
 As at 31 

March 2020 

Note 16  Other Equity 

 Securities Premium  

 Opening Balance  25,891.76  25,891.76 

 Additions during the year  -    -   

 Utilisation during the year  -    -   

 Closing Balance as at the year end  25,891.76  25,891.76 

 Capital Reserves 

 Opening Balance  606.25  100.00 

 Additions during the year  506.25 

 Utilisation during the year  -    -   

 Closing Balance as at the year end  606.25  100.00 

Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss / Retained Earnings

 Opening Balance  (16,061.42)  (14,790.75)

 Add: Profit for the year  (2,229)  (1,763)

 Add: Adjstments for Goodwill due to one of the subsidiary being no longer and 
subsidiary and others 

 -    -   

 Add: other adjustments (including changes due to audit and derecognition of 
subsidiaries) 

 492.70 

 Less: Dividends  -    -   

 Closing Balance as at the year end  (18,290.59)  (16,061.42)

 8,207.42  10,436.59 

a)    Capital Reserve represents the amount of share warrant money received which had been forfeited since the balance amount 
due to call of these share warrants were not paid.

b)   General Reserves represents the amount of retained earnings available for appropriation freely as it is merely an 
accumulation of profit earned over the year(s).

c )   The subsidiary Company at Singapore viz. Readymade Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd., is under liquidation process and the step 
down subsidiary of the Company at Singapore viz. K.H.Foges Pte. Ltd. is under judicial management. Hence, due to non-
availability of the figures for the year ended 31st March, 2021, the same have not been considered for the purpose of the 
consolidated financials. Accordingly, the Consolidated figures for the year ended 31st March, 2021 includes only the Indian 
subsidiary’s figures and are not comparable with the previous years’ figures. As already informed earlier, as a matter of 
prudence, the Company has, already impaired its investments and loans outstanding in the said subsidiary Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Ltd., in its standalone financials. In view of the same, there will be no material impact of the said liquidation 
on the financials of the Company.

Note 17 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings

 Secured Term loan from banks / FI's  7.15  10.73 

  7.15  10.73 

 Security Details 

 Vehicle Loans are secured against the respective vehicles. 

 Terms of Repayment: 

 In EMI’s till 2023

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note No. Particulars
 As at 31 

March 2021 
 As at 31 

March 2020 

Note 18  Other Non Current Liabilities 

 Retention Payable  46.82  6.85 

 Liability for Invocation of BG for Associate  2,555.66 

 46.82  2,562.50 

Note 19  Deferred Tax Liability 

 Component of Deferred Tax Liability 

Timing Difference on account of difference in depreciation and Gratuity  60.79  68.48 

 60.79  68.48 

Note 20  Provisions 

 Provision for Employee Benefits: 

 Opening Balance as at the beginning of the year  5.36  10.21 

 Add: Additions / (Release) during the year  (3.45)  (4.85)

 Less: Utilised during the year 

 Closing Balance as at the year end  1.91  5.36 

 (Refer Note No. 47 for details) 

Note 21  Short Term Borrowing 

 Secured Working Capital / Short Term facilities from Bank / FI's and others*  1,924.98  1,782.78 

 Other Loans  -    5.96 

 1,924.98  1,788.75 

 *Secured by Equitable Mortgage of the Factory Land & Building Situated at Village Vanwathe, Khopli, Taluka, Khalapur, 
Raigad, Maharashtra. Further, secured by charge on Plant & Machineries of the company. Also secured by office premises 
of the Director.

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note No. Particulars
 As at 31 

March 2021 
 As at 31 

March 2020 

Note 22  Trade Payables 

 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises  -    -   

 Others  895.81  1,499.03 

 895.81  1,499.03 

 

Note 23  Other financial liabilities 

 Advance against Sales  -    10.54 

 Liability for Invocation of BG for Associate  2,555.66  -   

 Expenses Payable / Others  575.78  1,618.20 

 Retention Money  -    7.08 

 Short Term Borrowing from Promoter Director  18.65  4.05 

 3,150.09  1,639.88 

Note 24  Provisions 

 Provision for Tax   22.00  3.36 

 Others  297.25  548.04 

 319.25  551.40 

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



113

Kridhan Infra Limited

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 25 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year ended 31-03-2021  Year ended 31-03-2020 

Sale of Goods & Services  2,702.54  1,837.37 

Other Operating Income  40.94  65.58 

Revenue from Operations  2,743.48  1,902.95 

Note No. 26 - OTHER INCOME

Particulars  Year ended 31-03-2021  Year ended 31-03-2020 

Non Operating Income  157.39  257.84 

Other Income  157.39  257.84 

Note No. 27- PURCHASES

Particulars  Year ended 31-03-2021  Year ended 31-03-2020 

Purchases  2,624.43  1,449.31 

Consumables and other Direct Cost  24.90  35.65 

Purchases  2,649.34  1,484.96 

Note No. 28 - EMPLOYEE COSTS

Particulars  Year ended 31-03-2021  Year ended 31-03-2020 

Salaries and Wages  27.97  67.68 

Directors' Remuneration  -   

Employee Costs  27.97  67.68 

Note No. 29 - FINANCE COSTS

Particulars  Year ended 31-03-2021  Year ended 31-03-2020 

"Interest & Discounting Charges  

paid to Bank(s), FI, Hire Purchases and others"
 196.76  207.35 

Bank Charges  0.49  8.38 

Other Chargres  4.81    0.38 

Finance Cost 202.06  216.11 
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“As a one time hit, the management has decided to write-off some old receivables which are not being collected despite considerable time lag and 
follow up. Since, the management had been hopeful of recovery no provision in respect of these were made in earlier year(s). Hence, the write-off 
have been shown under exceptional items.

Since, these are not regular expenses, in order to present the results of operations in a more meaningful manner, these amount have been classified 
as exceptional items.”

Further, considering the fact that the operations of the group are still run on a day to day basis, the management is hopeful of running the same as 
a going concern and hence the same is not considered to be impaired.

Note No. 30 - OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021  Year ended 31-03-2020

Administrative, Selling and Other Expenses 75.84 76.21 - 110.40

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0.37 0.67

Break up of major expenses

Electricity Charges -   0.92

Insurance Charges 0.55 2.32

Rent, Rates & Taxes 5.40 21.58

Repair & Maintainance 8.50 1.06

Printing & Stationery -   0.36

Legal & Professional Charges 1.75 22.43

Travelling Expenses -   3.87

Telephone Expenses 1.43 3.02

Misc Expenses 32.55 54.17

Other Expenses 76.21 110.40

Note No. 31 - EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021  Year ended 31-03-2020

Impairment of Loans and advances and other recoverables from others 390.68 -  

Write-off of dues receivable 9.67 -  

Bad Debts Expenses 268.31 -  

Write-off of dues receivable being not recoverable 835.33

Exceptional Items 668.66 835.33
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note No. 32 : Details of Investments in Associates made by the company
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of Associate Principal activity

Place of 
incorporation and 
principal place of 

business

Proportion of ownership interest/ 
voting rights held by the Company

As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 31, 
2020

Unquoted, Fully Paid up

Vijay Nirman Company Pvt Ltd
All types of civil 

projects
India 41.47% 41.47%

Face Value - Rs. 10 

Investments in Equity Instruments  
(at cost) (in Rs.)

 9,841.70  9,841.70 

Note No 33: Liquidity risk

“Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk 
by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

The Group has obtained term loans and working capital facilities from banks.

As of March 31, 2021, the Group had working capital (Total current assets - Total current liabilities) of negative Rs. 187.00 lacs including cash 
and cash equivalents of Rs. 59.38 Lacs. As of March 31, 2020, the Company had working capital (Total current assets - Total current liabilities) of  
Rs.501.33 lacs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 73.28 lacs.”

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non 
derivative financial liabilities:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

31-Mar-21
Carrying 
amount

 Total 
Less 

than 12 
months

1-2 
years

2-5 
years

More than 
5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings

Rupee Loans - From Banks  1,924.98  1,924.98  1,924.98  -   

Unsecured Loan - Rupee Loans - Others

Other Financial Liabilities

Deferred Payments  -    -   

Payables for  Goods & Services  3,150.09  3,150.09 

Trade payables  895.81  895.81 
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

31-Mar-20 Carrying amount  Total 
Less than 12 

months
1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 
years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings

Rupee Loans - From Banks  1,793.51  1,793.51  1,782.78  10.73 

Unsecured Loan - Rupee Loans - Others  10.01  10.01  10.01 

Other Financial Liabilities

Deferred Payments  -    -   

Payables for  Goods & Services  4,191.49  4,191.49 

Trade payables  1,499.03  1,499.03 

Note 34 : Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital  management, capital  includes  issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable 
to the equity  holders of the parent / group. The primary objective  of the Group’s capital  management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company / Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the 
financial  covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust  the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital  to 
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The 
Company’s policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The Company / Group includes within net debt, interest bearing  loans and borrowings, trade 
and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Borrowings (Note 17 & Note 21)  1,932.13  1,803.53 

Trade payables (Note 22)  895.81  1,499.03 

Other Financial Liabilities (Note 18 & 23)  3,196.91  4,198.33 

Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)  59.39  73.28 

Net debt  5,965.46  7,427.60 

Equity  1,895.58  1,895.58 

Total sponsor capital  1,895.58  1,895.58 

Capital and net debt  7,861.04  9,323.19 

Gearing ratio (%)  75.89  79.67 

Note 35 : Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the company owes dues 
on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.The above information regarding 
Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties has been identified on the basis of information available with the 
company and the same have been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 36 : Fair Values

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note No 37: Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

Risk management framework

The Company / Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including revenue risk, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company 
/ Group’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of revenue risk. The Company / Group’s risk management 
assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company / Group, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s / Group’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is 
responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company / Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. The company’s primary business is dealing in Iron and Steel 
products which is on credit to parties and are subjected to assessment of creditworthiness. The creditworthiness is periodically reviewed for any high 
risk credit receivable. Based on such assessment the management is of the view that there is moderate credit risk in respect of its trade receivables.

Trade and other receivables

“The company’s primary business is trading and providing services. There are certain receivables arising from the same for which required assessment 
of credit worthiness is being carried out by the company on a recurring basis based on which the company is of the view that there are no significant 
expected losses on account of its trade receivables. The age-wise breakup of the receivables is as under:“

Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from its customers is as follows:

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Neither past due nor impaired  500.94  2,225.20 

Past due but not impaired

Due 1–90 days

Due 91–180 days  460.54  117.35 

Due 181–270 days  244.64  98.27 

Due 271–365 days  10.21  243.57 

Due more than 365 days  2,510.99  2,806.47 

 3,727.31  5,490.86 



Annual Report 2020-21

118

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit 
losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macro economic indicators 
affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses 
to continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on 
historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. Hence, the company has not recognized any provision for expected 
credit loss till date except as mentioned at Note no. 31.

Cash and cash equivalents

Out of total Cash and Cash equivallent of Rs. 59.38 Lakhs and Rs. 73.28 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively, the Group 
held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institustions of Rs. 39.42 Lakhs and Rs. 48.28 lakhs as at 31st March 2021 
and 31st March 2020 respectively. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing 
basis and there are no indications of them being negatively impacted.

Guarantees			 

The Company has provided the following financial guarantees:

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Bank / Corporate Guarantees  19,555.13  19,555.13 

Corporate guarantees have been given to assist subsidiaries and / including  step down subsidiaries for availing banking facilities and credit.

Bank guarantees are performance bank guarantees given to customers.

Security deposits given to lessors

The Company has not taken any premises on lease basis against security deposits, hence the said disclosure is not applicable

Loans, investments in group companies

The Company has given unsecured loans to its associates companies and their Directors / KMP of Rs 357.16 Lakhs; Rs 444.29 Lakhs as at 31 
March, 2021 and 31 March, 2020 respectively. The Company does not perceive any credit risk pertaining to loans provided to its associates.
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note No. 38 : Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and 
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk and Currency risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market  prices. Market risk 
comprises  three types of risk: interest  rate risk, currency  risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments 
affected  by market  risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and derivative financial instruments.

The following table summaries the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the period by categories:

‘Carrying amount of Financial Assets and Liabilities:	

Financial assets (carried at amortised cost) :

Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Loans  1,872.04  2,836.70 

Trade receivable  3,727.31  5,490.86 

Cash and cash equivalents  59.39  73.28 

Others  53.13  54.63 

At end of the period  5,711.87  8,455.48 

Financial liabilities carried  at amortised cost

Borrowings (secured)  1,924.98  1,799.48 

Borrowings (unsecured)  -    4.05 

Trade payables  895.81  1,499.03 

Other financial liabilities  3,196.91  4,198.33 

At end of the period  6,017.70  7,500.89 

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared  on the basis that the amount  of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest  rates of the debt and 
derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and in place at  March 31, 2021.

The following assumptions  have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect  of the assumed changes in respective market  risks. This is based on the financial  assets 
and financial  liabilities held at March 31,2021 and March 31, 2020.

‘Credit risk on Financial Assets

The company is primarily engaged in the business of trading in Iron and Steel. Payments by it are typically not secured by any form of credit support 
such as letters of credit, performance guarantees or escrow arrangements. Credit  risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under 
a financial instrument, leading to a financial  loss. The Company is exposed to credit  risk from its operating activities and from its financing activities, 
including deposits with banks, foreign exchange  transactions and other financial  instruments.

Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counter-parties to discharge their obligations in full or in 
a timely manner consist principally of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and other assets. Credit risk on cash balances with Bank are limited 
because the counterparties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. The exposure to credit risk for trade receivable is low as it mainly consists of 



Annual Report 2020-21

120

customers who are assessed by the management and the collection is received on timely basis within the credit period which is about 30 to 90 days.

Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are past due as at the end of reporting year but not impaired are given herein before.

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities.

The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 to 90 days. The other payables are with short-term durations. The carrying 
amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances  with banks and financial  institutions is managed by the Company’s top management in accordance with the Company’s 
policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit  limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty 
credit limits are reviewed by the top management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the 
Company’s board of directors. The limits  are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s 
potential failure  to make payments.

The Company maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 is the carrying 
amounts as illustrated in Note 12 & 14. The Group’s maximum exposure  relating to financial guarantees and financial derivative instruments is 
noted in notes and the liquidity table below.

Interest Rate

The company does not operate in an industry that requires intense capital and hence the exposure to interest rate risk is reasonably moderate. The 
major component of the interest charge for the company is denominated in variable risk instruments which are basically in the form of loan from 
banks and FI’s. The details of the borrowings of the Company is given in the respective notes on borrowings.

The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed and floating interest rates. The interest rate are disclosed in the respective notes to the 
financial statement of the Company. The following table analyse the breakdown of the financial assets and liabilities by type of interest rate:

 Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Financial assets

Interest bearing

- fixed interest rate

Other bank balances  -    -   

Others  -    -   

Loans  -    -   

- floating interest rate  -    -   

Non interest bearing

Loans  1,872.04  2,836.70 

Others  -   

Trade receivable  3,727.31  5,490.86 

Cash and cash equivalent  59.39  73.28 

Financial Liabilities

Interest bearing

- floating interest rate

Borrowings  1,932.13  1,803.53 

Non interest bearing

Borrowings  -   

Trade and other payables  895.81  1,499.03 

Other financial liabilities  3,196.91  4,198.33 
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Interest rate sensitivity					   

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably  possible change in interest  rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, 
after  excluding the credit exposure for which interest rate swap has been taken and hence the interest rate is fixed. With all other variables held 
constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

 Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Increase in basis points

- INR 50.00 50.00

Effect on profit before tax

- INR -96.61 -90.18

Decrease in basis points

- INR 50.00 50.00

Effect on profit before tax

- INR 96.61 90.18

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company  may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable 
losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of  liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company 
closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including debt and 
overdraft from banks at an optimised cost.

The Company’s maximum exposure  to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31,2021 and March 31, 2020 is the carrying 
amounts  as illustrated in Note 21.  The Company’s maximum exposure  relating to financial guarantees are noted in the liquidity table below:

Particulars On demand Less than 3 
months

3to12 months 1 to5 years >5 years Total

INR lakhs INR lakhs INR lakhs INR lakhs INR lakhs INR lakhs

Year ended 31 March, 2021

Borrowings  1,924.98  1,924.98 

Other financial liabilities  3,150.09  3,150.09 

Trade and other payables  895.81  895.81 

 1,924.98  -    4,045.90  -    -    5,970.88 

Year ended 31 March, 2020

Borrowings  1,792.80  10.73  1,803.53 

Other financial liabilities  4,191.49  4,191.49 

Trade and other payables  1,499.03  1,499.03 

 1,792.80  -    5,690.52  10.73  -    7,494.04 
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Notes 39 - Related Party Statement
a) 	 Names of the Related Parties & relationship

Sr. No. Name of the Party Relationship

1 Anil Agrawal KMP 

2 Krishna Devi Agrawal KMP 

3 Kridhan Petrochemicals (P) Ltd KMP interested concern

4 K.H.F.Pte Singapore Ltd. KMP interested concern

5
Krish Steel & Trading (P) Ltd.(Formerly known as Kridhan 
Infrastructures (P) Ltd)

KMP interested concern

6 Kridhan Infrasolutions (P) Ltd Subsidiary Company

7 KH Foges India (P) Ltd. Step down Subsidiary Company

8 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd Subsidiary Company

9 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd. Associate Company

10 S Vijay Kumar Related to Associate Company

b) 	 Transactions with related party (ies) and balances thereof	

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Party Relationship
Nature of 

Transaction

Volume of Transaction 
during the period  

01-04-20 to  
31-03-21 (Rs.)

Amount 
outstanding as on 

31-03-21 (Rs.)

1 Anil Agrawal KMP

Shares Alloted
Nil 5,25,20,320

(Nil) (5,25,20,320)

Amount Received
14,60,492 18,65,492

(6,00,000) (4,05,000)

2 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 
Subsidiary 
Company

Investment made
"Nil  

(Nil)"
"1,11,75,82,562 

(1,11,75,82,562)"

3 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 
Subsidiary 
Company

Loan Given and 
interest on loan(net)

"Nil  
(55,04,832)"

"15,16,75,183 
(15,16,75,183)"

4 Readymade Steel Singapore PTE Ltd 
Subsidiary 
Company

Dividend Income
"Nil 

(Nil)"
"25,62,335 

(25,62,335)"

5 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd.
Associates 
Company 

Investment made in 
Equity #

" Nil 
(Nil) "

" 98,41,70,262 
(98,41,70,262) "

6 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd.
Associates 
Company 

Working Capital 
Advance

" Nil 
(Nil) "

"94,28,648 
(94,28,648)"

7 Vijay Nirman Company (P) Ltd.
Associates 
Company 

Sales/ Receipts 
(net)**

11,37,953                          
(27,53,243)"

2,36,34,133       
(2,58,73,674)"

8 S Vijay Kumar
KMP of Associate 
Company

Advance
" Nil 

(Nil) "
"3,50,00,000 

(3,50,00,000)"

** Includes late payment charges

# Represents the aggregate of amount paid and value of shares alloted to the associate company and its shareholders

Previous years’ figures are given in bracket
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021	
Note No. 40 : Earnings per Share (EPS)
The Computation of EPS is set out below :

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March 2021

For the year ended 31st 
March 2020

Basic & Diluted Basic & Diluted

Earnings

Net Profit for the year (in Rs.)  (2,227.34)  (2,502.25)

Shares

Number of Shares at the beginning of the year  94,779,205  94,779,205 

Equity Shares alloted during the year  -    -   

Total number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year  94,779,205  94,779,205 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic  94,779,205  94,779,205 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Diluted  94,779,205  94,779,205 

Face Value (in Rs.)  2.00  2.00 

Earnings per share Basic (in Rs.)  (2.35)  (2.64)

Earnings per share Diluted (in Rs.)  (2.35)  (2.64)

Note No. 41: The company has one subsidiary each in Singapore namely Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd. and in India namely Kridhan 
Infrasolutions Pvt. Ltd. The company has made long term investment in the equity of these companies. However for the reasons mentioned at Note 
no. 16, as a matter of prudence, the Company has, already impaired its investments and loans outstanding in the said subsidiary Readymade Steel 
Singapore Pte. Ltd., in its standalone financials. In view of the same, there will be no material impact of the said liquidation on the financials of the 
Company.	

Note No. 42 : Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent liabilities not provided for:
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Bank / Corporate Guarantees issued to parties  19,555.13  19,555.13 

"a) Income tax and VAT liabilities in respect of pending / ongoing assessments 
b) The company has received notices of demand from Office of Income Tax for Rs. 65.71 Lakhs 
for A.Y. 2019-20 and Rs. 2.18 Lakhs for the A.Y 18-19 and for Rs. 636.53 Lakhs for AY. 2012-
13 and from Office of Sales Tax for Rs. 1447.39 Lakhs for payment of tax and other dues for 
which it has filed / represented at appropriate forums and are pending at these forums. Based 
on the progress made and as per the best estimates made by the company, considering that the 
company has already applied under Amnesty scheme and its application has been approved, 
based on legal opinion obtained, the company will not be required to pay any material amount 
in respect of the same. "

Not Ascertainable

Note 43 : Fixed Assets, Stocks and Cash balance were physically verified by the management. The Certification of the same as given by the 
managment has been relied upon by the auditors. No unadjusted material variations were observed on such verification.

Note 44 : The current assets, loans and advances  have the values at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance sheet on their 
realisation in ordinary course of business. Provisions for all known liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

Note No. 45 : Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single business segment but there are two geographical segments but since the figures for Singapore subsidiaries are 
not available, the segment reporting is not submitted.
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note No. 46 : Events after reporting period

No subsequent events that would have a material impact on the financials were observed after the reporting period for which effect have not been 
considered in the financial statements. As stated elsewhere in the financials, full provision towards impairment of Investments and other Loans and 
Advances / receivables from the subsidiary Readymade Steel Singapore Pte Ltd., Singapore have been made in the books and provision for all 
anticipated / known liabilities have been created.

Note No. 47 : Gratuity as Defined contribution benefits Scheme

Defined Benefit Plan

The company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Under the said Act, employee who has completed 5 years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends upon the 
strength of service of the employees and the salary at the retirement age.

Following table summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognised in the 
balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

Amount in Lakhs 

Statement of profit and loss 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Net Employee benefit expenses recognised in the employee cost

Current Service Cost  0.50  1.07 

Interest Cost on Obligation  -    0.62 

Expected return on plan assets  -   

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year ended March 31, 2018  (1.90)  (1.14)

Past Service Cost  -    (5.40)

 (1.40)  (1.95)

Changes in Present value of defined benefit obligation 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Opening Defined benefit obligation  8.82  10.22 

Current Service Cost  0.50  1.07 

Interest Cost  0.50  0.62 

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year ended March 31, 2018 less considered in earlier year  (1.90)  (1.14)

Benefits Paid / Past Service cost  -    (5.40)

Closing Balance of Defined benefit obligation (Non Current)  7.92  5.37 

Principle Assumptions

Rate of Interest 6.75% Per Annum

Salary Growth 5.50% Per Annum

Withdrawal Rate 1% at all ages

Mortality Rates "Indian Assured Lives (2012-14) Ult. Mortality Rates"

Retirment Age 58 Years
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Note No. 48 : Goodwill on Consolidation

The amount of Goodwill as on 31 Mar 2021 of Rs. 22.70 Lacs represents the excess amount paid on acquisition of a subsidiary which has been 
retained as at the reporting date as a part of the Group.

Note No. 49 : The Consolidated Financial statements of the Group have been prepared based on the audited financials of the subsidiary in India. 

Note No. 50 : The Financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated June 30, 2021	

Note No. 51 : Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current classification.

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. KOTECHA & CO.	 For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105283W

CA Bakulesh R Kotecha	 Anil Agrawal	 Shekhar Bhuwania
Proprietor	 Chairman & MD	 Independent Director 
M No. 036309	 DIN: 00360114	 DIN: 03604299

Place: Mumbai	 Rajeshree Mishra	 Neha Shah
Date : 30th June, 2021	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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